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Audit Report of an Independent Certified Auditor-Ac countant

To the Shareholders of AKTOR SA

Report on the Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements of AKTOR ATE and
its subsidiaries which comprise the separate and consolidated statement of financial position as of 31
December 2010 and the separate and consolidated income statement and statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these separate and consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the
European Union, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of separate and consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate and consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate and consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the separate and consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the separate and
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
separate and consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the separate and consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the separate and consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of AKTOR ATE and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2010, and their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union.

Reference on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters

We verified the conformity and consistency of the information given in the Board of Directors’ report
with the accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of articles 43a, 108 and 37 of Codified Law 2190/1920.

Athens, 25 May 2011 The Certified Auditor Accountant

pwec

PriceWaterhouseCoopers

Auditing Firm

Certified Auditors — Accountants

268 Kifissias Avenue

152 32 Halandri Marios Psaltis

SOEL Reg. No. 113 SOEL Reg. 38081
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Statement of Financial Position

Amounts in ,000 EUR

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in associates
Investments in Joint Ventures

Financial assets available for sale
Deferred tax asset
Other non-current receivables

Current assets
Inventory
Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Attributable to equity holders
Share capital

Share premium

Other reserves

Profit/ (loss) carried forward

Non controlling interests
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Grants

Other long-term liabilities
Other long term provisions

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Current income tax liabilities
Borrowings

Dividends payable

Other short-term provisions

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note

10
8c.

12
20
14

13
14
15

16
16
17

18
20
21
22
19
23

19

18

23

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
155,748 178,932 70,079 69,769
5,463 7,049 38 42
- - 104,922 104,045
69,469 71,132 1,397 1,417
920 968 2,247 2,311
396 436 372 409
75 416 - -
15,852 12,622 1,466 1,438
247,923 271,556 180,520 179,430
30,076 32,553 539 2,975
884,457 924,293 544,368 482,189
181,328 246,274 68,601 80,105
1,095,862 1,203,119 613,508 565,269
1,343,785 1,474,675 794,029 744,699
123,900 123,900 123,900 123,900
72,789 72,789 72,789 72,789
124,360 102,649 107,768 93,402
65,778 100,385 32,762 59,234
386,828 399,722 337,218 349,325
3,093 9,960 - -
389,921 409,682 337,218 349,325
43,965 46,903 30,000 30,000
20,012 16,327 7,841 2,674
6,060 5,687 5,107 4,728
912 205 - -
2,430 479 11 11
7,977 7,480 3,483 2,965
81,357 77,080 46,442 40,378
597,140 748,537 303,337 308,543
11,477 8,943 1,875 3,345
250,262 205,247 95,547 22,385
9,468 19,950 9,434 19,916
4,161 5,235 176 807
872,507 987,912 410,369 354,995
953,864 1,064,992 456,810 395,374
1,343,785 1,474,675 794,029 744,699

The notes on pages 12 to 68 form an integral gahese financial statements.
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‘ AKTOR

Income Statement

Amounts in ,000 EUR

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

Note 1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Sales 1,287,666 1,663,199 535,671 627,580
Cost of sales 24 (1,229,270) (1,557,626) (534,704) (605,518
Gross profit 58,396 105,572 967 22,062
Distribution costs 24 (2,952) (4,871) - -
Administrative expenses 24 (39,015) (38,374) (22,804) (21,954
Other operating income/(expenses) (net) 25 12,800 10,508 11,791 5,549
Profit /(Loss) from Joint Ventures 8d. (593) (8) 16,639 31,775
Operating results 28,636 72,827 6,592 37,432
Income from dividends - - 692 -
Share of profit/ (loss) from associates 10 (7,002) (1,322) - -
Financial income/ (expenses) - net 26 (12,251) (12,272) (990) (725)
Profit before income tax 9,383 59,234 6,294 36,707
Income tax 28 (18,912) (19,846) (5,202) (8,764)
(9,529) 39,387 1,092 27,943

Extraordinary, social responsibility levy 28 (4,199) (3,345) (1,875) (3,345)
Net profit/ (loss) for the period after income taxand
extraordinary social responsibility levy (13,728) 36,042 (784) 24,599
Profit for the period attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company (7,637) 37,861 (784) 24,599
Non controlling interests (6,091) (1,818) - -

(13,728) 36,042 (784) 24,599

The notes on pages 12 to 68 form an integral gahese financial statements.
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Statement of comprehensive income

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Net profit/ (loss) for the period

Other Comprehensive Income

Currency translation differences

Change in value of financial assets available &b s
Cash flow hedge

Other

Other Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) for the
period (net after taxes)

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) for the
period

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) for the
period attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non controlling interests
Total

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09

(13,728) 36,042 (784) 24,599

4,057 (4,020) (966) 868

(32) 115 (32) 115

2,306 2,704 - -

- (27) - -

6,331 (1,228) (998) 984

(7,397) 34,815 (1,782) 25,582

(1,493) 37,359 (1,782) 25,582
(5,904) (2,544) - .

(7,397) 34,815 (1,782) 25,582

The notes on pages 12 to 68 form an integral gahese financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Results Non
Share Share Other carried controlling
Note capital premium reserves forward Total interests Total
1 January 2009 108,900 37,955 100,898 82,926 330,679 11,900 382,57
Net profit/ (loss) for the period - - - 37,861 37,861 (1,818) 36,042
Other Comprehensive Income
Currency translation differences 17 - - (3,294) - (3,294) (726) (4,020)
Changes in value of financial
assets available for sale 17 - - 115 - 115 - 115
Changes in value of cash flow
hedge 17 - - 2,704 - 2,704 - 2,704
Other - - - (27) (27) - (27)
Other comprehensive income
for the period (net after taxes) - - (475) (27) (502) (726) (1,228)
Total Comprehensive Income/
(Expenses) for the period - - (475) 37,834 37,359 (2,544) 34,815
Share capital issue 15,000 34,834 - - 49,834 - 49,834
Transfer to reserves 17 - - 2,225 (2,225) - - -
Proportion of non controlling
interests in the distribution of
results of an LTD subsidiary - - - - - (84) (84)
Dividends distributed - - - (21,780) (21,780) - (21,780)
Effect of acquisitions and change
in participation share in
subsidiaries - - - 3,630 3,630 688 4,318
15,000 34,834 2,225 (20,375) 31,684 604 32,289

31 December 2009 123,900 72,789 102,649 100,385 399,722 9,960 409,68
1 January 2010 123,900 72,789 102,649 100,385 399,722 9,960 409,68
Net profit/ (loss) for the period - - - (7,637) (7,637) (6,091) (13,728)
Other Comprehensive Income
Currency translation differences 17 - - 3,871 - 3,871 186 4,057
Changes in value of financial
assets available for sale 17 - - (32) - (32) - (32)
Changes in value of cash flow
hedge 17 - - 2,306 - 2,306 - 2,306
Other comprehensive income
for the period (net after taxes) - - 6,145 - 6,145 186 6,331
Total Comprehensive Income/
(Expenses) for the period - - 6,145 (7,637) (1,493) (5,904) (7,397)
Transfer to reserves 17 - - 15,567 (15,567) - - -
Proportion of non controlling
interests in the distribution of
results of an LTD subsidiary - - - - - (89) (89)
Dividends distributed - - - (10,325) (10,325) (527) (10,852)
Effect of acquisitions and change
in participation share in
subsidiaries - - - (1,077) (1,077) (346) (1,422)

- - 15,567 (26,969) (11,402) (962)  (12,364)
31 December 2010 123,900 72,789 124,360 65,779 386,828 3,094 389,921

Associates participate in the change in Other vesefor 2010 with €5,356 thousanthe respective amount for
2009 was €469 thousand.
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COMPANY FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Results
Share Share Other carried
Note capital premium reserves forward Total
1 January 2009 108,900 37,955 90,546 58,289 295,689
Net profit/ (loss) for the period - - - 24,599 24,599
Other Comprehensive Income
Currency translation differences 17 - - 868 - 868
Changes in value of financial assets
available for sale 17 - - 115 - 115
Other comprehensive income for the
period (net after taxes) - - 984 - 984
Total Comprehensive Income/
(Expenses) for the period - - 984 24,599 25,582
Share capital issue 15,000 34,834 - - 49,834
Transfer to reserves 17 - - 1,873 (1,873) -
Dividends distributed - - - (21,780) (21,780)
31 December 2009 123,900 72,789 93,402 59,234 349,325
1 January 2010 123,900 72,789 93,402 59,234 349,325
Net profit/ (loss) for the period - - - (784) (784)
Other Comprehensive Income
Currency translation differences 17 - - (966) - (966)
Changes in value of financial assets
available for sale 17 - - (32) - (32)
Other comprehensive income for the
period (net after taxes) - - (998) - (998)
Total Comprehensive Income/
(Expenses) for the period - - (998) (784) (1,782)
Transfer to reserves 17 - - 15,364 (15,364) -
Dividends distributed - - - (10,325) (10,325)
31 December 2010 123,900 72,789 107,768 32,762 337,218

The notes on pages 12 to 68 form an integral gahese financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Operating activities

Profit before tax

Plus/ less adjustments for:
Depreciation

Provisions

Currency translation differences

Note

5,6,22

Results (income, expenses, gains and losses) freesting activities

Debit interest and related expenses

26

Plus/ less adjustments for changes in working ahpitcounts or

related to operating activities:

Decrease/ (increase) of inventory

Decrease/ (increase) of receivables

(Decrease)/ increase of liabilities (except banks)
Less:

Debit interest and related expenses paid

Taxes paid

Total inflows (outflows) from operating activitiées)
Investing activities

(Acquisition)/ Disposal of subsidiaries, associafé and other

investments

Purchase of tangible and intangible assets andtiment properties 5,6

Revenues from sales of PPE and intangible assétsa@stment

property
Interest received
Loans (granted to)/ repaid by related parties

Dividends received
Total inflows/(outflows) from investing activiti@®

Einancing activities
Proceeds from share capital increase

Payment of expenses for share capital increase
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

Payments of leases
Dividends paid

Tax paid on dividends
Grants received

5,6,25

14

22

Third party participation in share capital increaésubsidiaries

Total inflows/(outflows) from financing activitiés)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivatefor the period

(@ +(b) +(c)
Cash and cash equivalents at period start

Cash and cash equivalents at period end

The notes on pages 12 to 68 form an integral gahese financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

01.01.2010 - 01.01.2009 - 01.01.2010 - 01.01.2009 -
31.12.2010  31.12.2009 31.12.2010  31.12.2009
9,383 59,234 6,294 36,707
34,132 29,748 11,367 11,140
(577) 5,731 (114) 2,577
(1,423) 906 (963) 925
3,122 (5,481) (1,709) (1,150)
17,904 15,951 3,664 1,548
1,953 47,996 2,437 536
33,020 (64,482) (61,909) (21,128)
(152,502) (132,108) (4,826) (60,836)
(16,317) (15,793) (3,191) (1,548)
(9,493) (16,045) (3,345) (8,926)
(80,798) (74,343) (52,297) (40,155)
(1,424) 9,633 (831) (3,302)
(16,329) (41,630) (12,106) (7,270)
7,018 9,765 720 3,641
3,651 4,610 766 785
- - (38) -
- - 400 -
(7,085) (17,622) (11,089) (6,146)
- 50,000 - 50,000
- (201) - (166)
206,383 159,548 91,301 64,280
(160,512) (147,904) (18,612) (79,529)
(3,009) (2,533) - -
(19,775) (19,741) (19,774) (19,719)
(1,033) (2,178) (1,033) (2,178)
722 - - -
162 - - -
22,937 36,991 51,882 12,688
(64,945) (54,974) (11,503) (33,612)
246,274 301,248 80,105 113,717
181,328 246,274 68,601 80,105
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information
The Group operates via its subsidiaries, mainlgoinstructions & quarrying.

The Company was incorporated and established ied@revith registered and central offices at 25 Errsbu
14564, Kifissia, Attica.

These financial statements were approved by thedBo&Directors on 24 March 2011 and are subjech®®
approval of the General Meeting of shareholdergyTdre available on the company’s website at: wktoragr

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The basic accounting principles applied in the grafon of these financial statements are set elavwb These
principles have been consistently applied to adrggresented, unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated and company financial statenfeate been prepared in accordance with the Iniensdt
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Im&gbions of the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), as they havenberedorsed by the European Union, and IFRS issydtieb
International Accounting Standards Board (IASBhe financial statements have been prepared urder t
historical cost convention, except for financisdets available from sale, which have been valuéairaralue.

The preparation of the financial statements unB&9 requires the use of accounting estimates adrgstions
by the Management in implementing the accountingcies adoptedThe areas involving extensive judgment or
complexity, or where assumptions and estimates lawggnificant impact on the financial statements a
mentioned in Note 4.

2.2 New standards, amendments to standards and interptations
Certain new standards, amendments to standardsntergretations have been issued that are mandébory

accounting periods beginning during the currenbriépg period or laterThe Group’s evaluation of the effect of
these new standards, amendments to standardstaraétations is as follows.

Standards and Interpretations mandatorily effedtiveéhe current financial year

IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations and IAS 2Aifendment) — Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

The revised IFRS 3 introduces a number of changései accounting for business combinations whidhimpact

the amount of goodwill recognized, the reportediltesn the period that an acquisition occurs, airidre reported
results. Such changes include the expensing ofigitiqo-related costs and recognising subsequesmigds in fair
value of contingent consideration in the profitlass. The amended IAS 27 requires that a changavirership

interest of a subsidiary to be accounted for asauuity transaction. The amended standard chahgesctounting
for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well &sldiss of control of a subsidiary. Furthermore, daquirer in a
business combination has the option of measuriaghtm-controlling interest, at the acquisition daiéher at fair
value or at the amount of the percentage of thecooitrolling interest over the net assets acquifée Group has
applied the revised and amended standards fromubda2010.
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IFRS 2 (Amendment) - Share-based Payment

The purpose of the amendment is to clarify the sa@plFRS 2 and the accounting for group casheskthare-
based payment transactions in the separate orididivfinancial statements of the entity receivthg goods or
services, when that entity has no obligation ttles¢the share-based payment transaction. This amemtddoes
not have an impact on the Group’s financial stataése

IAS 39 (Amendment) “Financial instruments: Recogniton and measurement”
This amendment clarifies the way in which the pphes that determine whether a hedged risk or gorif cash
flows falls within the scope of hedge accountingustl be applied in specific cases. This amendmeas dhot

have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRIC 15 — Agreements for the construction of realestate(EU endorsed for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 20}0

This interpretation addresses the diversity in antiog for real estate sales. Some financial estitecognise the
revenue subject to IAS 18 (i.e. when risks and fisnef real estate ownership are transferred), atiers
recognize the revenue depending on the real estatpletion stage, in line with IAS 11. The interat®n
clarifies which standard applies to each cases irterpretation does not have an impact on thei@sdinancial
statements.

IFRIC 16 - Hedges of a net investment in a foreigoperation (EU endorsed for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009

This interpretation applies to an entity that hedgee foreign currency risk arising from its netéatments in
foreign operations and qualifies for hedge accaognin accordance with IAS 39. The interpretatioovies
guidance on how an entity should determine the amsoto be reclassified from equity to profit ordder both
the hedging instrument and the hedged item. Théspretation is not relevant to the Group, as theu@ does not
apply hedge accounting for any investment in aifpreperation.

IFRIC 17 - Hedges of a net investment in a foreigonperation (EU endorsed for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 200

This interpretation provides guidance on accounfiorgthe following types of non-reciprocal distriians of
assets by an entity to its owners acting in thapacity as owners: (a) distributions of non-castesand (b)
distributions that give owners a choice of recaviither non-cash assets or a cash alternativs.ifit@rpretation
does not have an impact on the Group’s financéestents.

IFRIC 18 - Transfers of assets from customer§EU endorsed for annual periods beginning on ograft
November 200p

This interpretation clarifies the requirementsEiRBEs for agreements in which an entity receives faoccustomer
an item of property, plant and equipment that thiétye must then use to provide the customer withoagoing

supply of goods or services. In some cases, ttiy eateives cash from a customer which must bel osdy to

acquire or construct the item of property, plard aguipment. This interpretation is not relevanti® Group.
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Amendments to standards that form part of the IASBEI09 annual improvements project

The amendments set out below describe the key elsainglFRSs following the publication in April 2009 the
results of the IASB’s annual improvements projedthe following amendments are effective for therent
financial year. In addition, unless otherwise edfathe following amendments do not have a materiphct on
the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 2 - Share-based Payment

The amendment confirms that contributions of a ess on formation of a joint venture and commontrobn
transactions are excluded from the scope of IFRS 2.

IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discaimued Operations”

The amendment clarifies the disclosures requireceapect of non-current assets classified as hwlagdle or
discontinued operations.

* |AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”

The amendment provides clarification that the piaersettlement of a liability by the issue of eguis not
relevant to its classification as current or norrent.

* |AS 7 “Cash Flow Statements”

The amendment requires that only expenditures risilt in a recognized asset in the statementnainfiial
position can be classified as investing activities.

*|AS 17 “Leases”

The amendment provides clarification as to thesifi@stion of leases of land and buildings as eitfirgance or
operating.

* |AS 18 “Revenue”

The amendment provides additional guidance reggrttia determination as to whether an entity isngctis a
principal or an agent.

* IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”

The amendment clarifies that the largest cash-g#ingr unit to which goodwill should be allocated fine
purposes of impairment testing is an operating sggras defined by paragraph 5 of IFRS 8 (that ferbethe
aggregation of segments).

* IAS 38 “Intangible Assets”

The amendments clarify (a) the requirements unBBSI 3 (revised) regarding accounting for intangémsets
acquired in a business combination and (b) thergi®n of valuation techniques commonly used byiters
when measuring the fair value of intangible asaetpiired in a business combination that are ndettan active
markets.

* IAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement”
The amendments relate to (a) clarification on ingalban pre-payment penalties as closely relawd/atives, (b)
the scope exemption for business combination cotstrand (c) clarification that gains or losses ashcflow

hedge of a forecast transaction should be recdlkedsifom equity to profit or loss in the period which the
hedged forecast cash flow affects profit or loss.
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IFRIC 9 “Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives”

The amendment clarifies that IFRIC 9 does not apgplypossible reassessment, at the date of acquisitid
embedded derivatives in contracts acquired in énbas combination between entities under commoiraion

IFRIC 16 “Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign @eration”
The amendment states that, in a hedge of a nestimeat in a foreign operation, qualifying hedgingtiuments

may be held by any entity within the group, inchglthe foreign operation itself, as long as certaguirements
are satisfied.

Standards and Interpretations mandatorily effedtiom periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (effective for annual periods beginning on orftdanuary 2013)

IFRS 9 is the first part of Phase 1 of the Boapigject to replace IAS 39. The IASB intends to axp IFRS 9
during 2010 to add new requirements for classif\ang measuring financial liabilities, derecognitmfrfinancial
instruments, impairment, and hedge accounting. IBRSates that financial assets are initially messat fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset ndaiatvalue through profit or loss, particular tsaction costs.
Subsequently financial assets are measured atiaatbdost or fair value and depend on the basibeoéntity’s
business model for managing the financial assedstla@ contractual cash flow characteristics of fihancial
asset. IFRS 9 prohibits reclassifications excepaie circumstances when the entity’s business hatdmges; in
this case, the entity is required to reclassifeetifd financial assets prospectively. IFRS 9 diaasion principles
indicate that all equity investments should be mess at fair value. However, management has aromopb
present in other comprehensive income unrealisddrealised fair value gains and losses on equitgstments
that are not held for trading. Such designatioavailable on initial recognition on an instrumegtihstrument
basis and is irrevocable. There is no subsequewtlirg of fair value gains and losses to profilass; however,
dividends from such investments will continue to fleeognised in profit or loss. IFRS 9 removes thstc
exemption for unquoted equities and derivativesioguoted equities but provides guidance on whenhroay be
an appropriate estimate of fair value. The Groupuisently investigating the impact of IFRS 9 os financial
statements. The Group cannot currently early atfelRE 9 as it has not been endorsed by the EU. Omte
approved will the Group decide if IFRS 9 will beoptied prior to 1 January 2013.

IAS 12 (Amendment) “Income Taxes"(effective for annual periods beginning on or mftelanuary 2012)

The amendment to IAS 12 provides a practical aggrdar measuring deferred tax liabilities and defdrtax
assets when investment property is measured usinfpir value model in IAS 40rivestment Property”Under
IAS 12, the measurement of deferred tax dependshmther an entity expects to recover an asset ghrose or
through sale. However, it is often difficult andbgective to determine the expected manner of regowith
respect to investment property measured at faireval terms of IAS 40. To provide a practical agmtoin such
cases, the amendments introduce a presumptiorathatvestment property is recovered entirely thtosgle.
This presumption is rebutted if the investment propis depreciable and is held within a businessl@ehwhose
objective is to consume substantially all of theremmic benefits embodied in the investment propevsr time,
rather than through sale. The presumption canaatebutted for freehold land that is an investnoperty,
because land can only be recovered through sdlee amendment has not yet been endorsed by the&amo
Union.

IAS 24 (Amendment) “Related Party Disclosures’(effective for annual periods beginning on or mftelanuary

2011)

This amendment attempts to reduce disclosuresaokéctions between government-related entitiesctardy
related-party definition. More specifically, it remes the requirement for government-related eastitiedisclose
details of all transactions with the government attier government-related entities, clarifies aimdptifies the
definition of a related party and requires the Idisgre not only of the relationships, transactiand outstanding
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balances between related parties, but of commitsreshivell in both the consolidated and the indigidinancial
statements. The Group will apply these changes fhain effective date.

IAS 32 (Amendment) “Financial instruments: Presentéion” (effective for annual periods beginning on oreaft
1 February 2010)

This amendment clarifies how certain rights isssiesuld be classified. In particular, based on #migendment,
rights, options or warrants to acquire a fixed namii the entity’s own equity instruments for agfixkamount of
any currency are equity instruments if the entifers the rights, options or warrants pro rataltmfits existing
owners of the same class of its own non-derivagignaity instruments. This amendment is not expeitethpact
the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 7 (Amendment) “Financial instruments: Disclosues” - transfers of financial assets(effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011)

This amendment sets out disclosure requirements faransferred financial assets not derecognised irheir
entirety as well as on transferred financial assetderecognised in their entirety but in which the r@orting
entity has continuing involvement. It also provids guidance on applying the disclosure requirement3.he
amendment has not yet been endorsed by the Eurdjrean.

IFRIC 19 “Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments” (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2010)

This interpretation addresses the accounting byettiity that issues equity instruments to a credioorder to
settle, in full or in part, a financial liabilityThe interpretation is not relevant to the Group.

IFRIC 14 (Amendment) “The Limit on a Defined Beneft Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction” (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2011)

The amendments apply in limited circumstances: wdreentity is subject to minimum funding requiretseand
makes an early payment of contributions to coves¢hrequirements. The amendments permit such &g ent
treat the benefit of such an early payment as setaghis interpretation is not relevant to the @xo

Amendments to standards that form part of the IASEI10 annual improvements project

The amendments set out below describe the key elsaoglFRSs following the publication in May 2010tloe
results of the IASB’s annual improvements projedinless otherwise stated the following amendments a
effective for annual periods beginning on or aftedanuary 2011. In addition, unless otherwiseedtathe
following amendments will not have a material impan the Group’s financial statements. The amemdsne
have not yet been endorsed by the European Union.
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IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”

The amendments provide additional guidance witlpeesto: (i) contingent consideration arrangements arising
from business combinations with acquisition dates@ding the application of IFRS 3 (2008); (ii) madng non-
controlling interests; and (iii) accounting for s&dased payment transactions that are part of sindss
combination, including un-replaced and voluntaréplaced share-based payment awards.

IFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures”

The amendments include multiple clarifications tethto the disclosure of financial instruments.

* |AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”

The amendment clarifies that entities may presandraalysis of the components of other compreherisogne
either in the statement of changes in equity ohiwithe notes.

IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statenmgs”

The amendment clarifies that the consequential @memnts to IAS 21, IAS 28 and IAS 31 resulting fiteer?008
revisions to IAS 27 are to be applied prospectively

IAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”

The amendment places greater emphasis on the sliselgrinciples that should be applied with respect
significant events and transactions, including dapes to fair value measurements, and the need tatepd
relevant information from the most recent annuglone.

IFRIC 13 “Customer Loyalty Programs”

The amendment clarifies the meaning of the termn ¥falue’ in the context of measuring award creditsder
customer loyalty programmes.

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” (effective for annual periods beginning on orftdanuary 2013)

IFRS 13 provides new guidance on fair value measent and disclosure requirements. These requirsnuen
not extend the use of fair value accounting buwigi® guidance on how it should be applied whereuds is
already required or permitted by other standardsiwiFRSs. IFRS 13 provides a precise definitdfair value
and a single source of fair value measurement asclodure requirements for use across IFRSs. DBisoio
requirements are enhanced and apply to all asadtdiabiliies measured at fair value, not justaficial ones.
This standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

Group of standards on consolidation and joint arrargements(effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013)

The IASB has published five new standards on cadestibn and joint arrangements: IFRS 10, IFRS ERS 12,

IAS 27 (amendment) and IAS 28 (amendment). Themedards are effective for annual periods beginoimgr

after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is peweditonly if the entire “package” of five standardsadopted at
the same time. These standards have not yet belmsed by the EU. The Group is in the process sésmsng
the impact of the new standards on its consolidétaghcial statements. The main provisions arlkews:
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IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”

IFRS 10 replaces all of the guidance on control eodsolidation in IAS 27 and SIC 12. The new statda
changes the definition of control for the purposedetermining which entities should be consolidat&dis
definition is supported by extensive applicationdgnce that addresses the different ways in whiclparting
entity (investor) might control another entity (@stee). The revised definition of control focusasttte need to
have both power (the current ability to direct éutivities that significantly influence returns)davariable returns
(can be positive, negative or both) before conisopresent. The new standard also includes guidamce
participating and protective rights, as well asagency/ principal relationships.

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”

IFRS 11 provides for a more realistic reflectionjaft arrangements by focusing on the rights ablébations of
the arrangement, rather than its legal form. Thesyof joint arrangements are reduced to two: jop@rations
and joint ventures. Proportional consolidation oinj ventures is no longer allowed. Equity accoumtis
mandatory for participants in joint ventures. Haestthat participate in joint operations will folMoaccounting
much like that for joint assets or joint operatidnslay. The standard also provides guidance fotigsathat
participate in joint arrangements but do not haetjcontrol.

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

IFRS 12 requires entities to disclose informatiojuding significant judgments and assumptionsicivlenable
users of financial statements to evaluate the aatigsks and financial effects associated withehtty's interests
in subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangementsuandnsolidated structured entities. An entity peovide any or
all of the above disclosures without having to §gpRS 12 in its entirety, or IFRS 10 or 11, or Hreended IAS
27 or 28.

IAS 27 (Amendment) “Separate Financial Statements”

This Standard is issued concurrently with IFRS @@ together, the two IFRSs supersede IAS Qa@risolidated
and Separate Financial Statement¥he amended IAS 27 prescribes the accountingdasatbsure requirements
for investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures asdociates when an entity prepares separate falestaiements.
At the same time, the Board relocated to IAS 2uiregnents from IAS 28lhvestments in Associategahd IAS
31 “Interests in Joint Ventureg’egarding separate financial statements.

IAS 28 (Amendment) “Investments in Associates andaint Ventures”
IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Venturesilaces IAS 28 Ifivestments in AssociatesThe
objective of this Standard is to prescribe the anting for investments in associates and to set that

requirements for the application of the equity methwhen accounting for investments in associatekjaint
ventures, following the issue of IFRS 11.
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2.3 Consolidation

(@) Subsidiaries

All companies controlled by the parent company @masidered subsidiaries. The existence of potembtéihg
rights that are exercisable at the time the fingnsiatements are prepared, are taken into acéoumtder to
determine whether the parent exercises control theesubsidiaries. Subsidiaries are fully constediddrom the
date that control over them is acquired and ceabe tonsolidated from the date that control ngéorexists.

The purchase method of accounting is used to atcfminthe acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.
Acquisition cost is calculated as the fair valughaf assets assigned, of obligations undertakém mace, and of
the financial products issued as of the date afs@ation. The costs associated with the acquiséienposted in
results. The individual assets, liabilities andtoayent liabilities that are acquired during a Inesis combination
are valued during the acquisition at their fairues regardless of the participation percentage. ditfierence
between acquisition cost and the fair value of shbsidiary’s equity share as at the date of adiprisis
recognized as goodwill. If the total cost of thejaisition is lower than the Group's portion in fa&lue of the
individual assets acquired, the difference is imiaiedly recognized in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealgaids on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminat@g gt if the transaction provides indication of amment of the
transferred asset. The accounting principles okthsidiaries have been amended so as to be ioroaibyf with

the ones adopted by the Group. In the parent coyp&tatement of Financial Position, subsidiaries\alued at
cost less impairment.

(b) Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies an accounting policy wherebyaitdies transactions with minority interests asdaations
with major Group shareholders. As regards purchassde from majority shareholders, the differencevben
the price paid and the relevant portion acquiretha carrying value of a subsidiary’s equity is aetéd from
equity. Any profit or loss arising from the salent@jority shareholders is also posted under equity.

As soon as the Group ceases to exercise contsigoificant influence, the remaining percentagesisalculated
at fair value, and any discrepancies are posteesults. Subsequently, this asset is classifieahagssociate, joint
venture or financial asset, its acquisition valeéng that fair value. In addition, any amounts prasly posted
under equity are accounted for as in cases of dialogidisposal, i.e. they might need to be accalifite in
results.

In case of sale of participation percentage to ssveate on which the Group continues, howevegxgrcise
significant influence, only the portion of amouptgviously posted directly under equity will be fEukin results.

(c)  Associates

Associates are companies on which the Group carcisgesignificant influence but not “control”, whids
generally the case when the Group holds a percerttagveen 20% and 50% of a company’s voting rights.
Investments in associates are initially recogniaedost and are subsequently valued using the JEqéthod.
The “Investments in associates” account also ireduthe goodwill resulting on acquisition (reduced amy
impairment losses).

Following the acquisition, the Group’s share in fitefits or losses of associates is recognizech@éihcome
statement, while the share of changes in other celmemsive income following the acquisition is regiagd in

other comprehensive income. The cumulative chamadfest the book value of the investments in assesia
When the Group’s share in the losses of an assasiaqual or larger than the carrying amount efitivestment,
the Group does not recognize any further losselgssrit has guaranteed for liabilities or made payt® on

behalf of the associate.
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Unrealized profits from transactions between theuprand its associates are eliminated accorditiget@roup’s
percentage ownership in the associates. Unrealagsks are eliminated, except if the transacticoviges
indications of impairment of the transferred as3éte accounting principles of affiliates have beeljusted in
order to be in conformity to the ones adopted ley@mnoup. In the parent company’s balance sheeicigss are
valued at cost less impairment.

(d)  Joint Ventures

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are antedi for on the basis of proportionate consolidafiexcept
for those which are inactive on the date of fiERS adoption, which are consolidated using thetgeuéthod as
described aboveY.he Group adds its share of the income, expenssstsaand liabilities and cash flows of each
joint-venture with the respective figures of theo@p.

The Group recognises the share in the gains oedosm sales of the Group to the joint-venturesctvhs
attributed to the other partners of the joint-veathe Group does not recognise its share inaies@r losses of
the joint-ventures which resulted from purchaseghef Group by the joint-ventures until the assetpuaed are
sold to a third party. Occurring losses from sudhaasaction is recognised directly if it evideneeieduction in
the net liquidation value of current assets or iimpant. The accounting principles of the joint-ugnets have been
adjusted in order to be in conformity to the ondeped by the Group. In the parent company’s balaheet,
joint ventures are valued at cost less impairment.

2.4 Currency translations

(@) Functional and presentation currency

The items in the financial statements of the Greugdmpanies are measured in the currency of theapyi
economic environment in which the Group operatesdtional currency). The consolidated financiakements
are reported in Euros, which is the functional enay and the reporting currency of the parent Camppa

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated mdinctional currency using the exchange rategaiieg at the

dates of the transactions. Profits and losses faygign exchange differences that result fromgattlement of
such transactions during the year and from the exsion of monetary items denominated in foreigrrency

using the rate in effect at the balance sheet a@aeecorded in the results. Foreign exchangerdiifees from
non-monetary items that are valued at their falueare considered as part of their fair value amedthus treated
similarly to fair value differences.

(c)  Group Companies

The results and financial position of all groupited (none of which has the currency of a hypdatidnary
economy) that have a functional currency differénetm the presentation currency are translated the
presentation currency as follows:

i) The assets and liabilities are converted usingates in effect at the balance sheet date,
i) The income and expenses are converted using thageveates of the period (except if the average
rate is not the reasonable approach of the acctedlilmpact of the rates in effect at the datedief t

transactions, in which case income and expensesarerted using the rates in effect at the dates
of the transactions) and
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iii) Any differences arising from this process are pbsiader other comprehensive income and are
transferred to the income statement upon dispdghkese companies.

Foreign exchange differences arising from the cmiwa of the net investment in a foreign comparsywell as
of the borrowing characterised as hedging of thve$tment are posted under other comprehensivengicopon
disposal of a foreign company in part or in whalecumulated exchange differences are transferrdtetmcome
statement of the period as profit or loss resulfiog the sale.

2.5 Investment property

Properties held under long-lasting leases or dap#is or both and are not used by Group compasies
classified as investments in property. Investménisroperty include privately owned fields and binigs. From
January 1, 2009 the Group applied the amended IAS 40 undiéshwproperty built or developed for future use as
investment property, are recognised initially agestments in property.

Investments in property are recognised initiallycast, including the relevant direct acquisitiord dvorrowing
costs. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition @nstruction of investment property are capitalizedthe
investment cost for the duration of the acquisittnconstruction and are no longer capitalized wtenfixed
asset is completed or stops to be constructedr Afitgal recognition, investments in property arued at cost,
less depreciation and any impairment. Investmeiltibgs are amortized based on their estimatedulisiéé

which is 40 years; however historic non refurbishaddings are amortized in 20 years.

Subsequent expenditure is added to the carryingevad the property only if it is probable that fteteconomic
benefits related to such property will flow to tBeoup and their cost can be reliably measured. répair and
maintenance cost is booked in the results when isugfalized.

If an investment in property is modified to an adse own use, then it is classified in tangiblesets. Moreover,
investments in property, for which the Group haelagreed their sale, are classified as inventories.

Property held by the parent company and leasedmapanies in the Group are classified as investmints
property in the separate financial statements ef @ompany and as tangible fixed assets in the Gdased
financial statements.

2.6 Leases

€)) Group Company as a lessee

Leases through which the lessor effectively undeaall the risks and rewards of ownership aresiflad as
operating leases. Operating lease expense is reeogim the income statement proportionally durihg lease
period and includes any restoration cost of theeny if such clause is included in the leasingtiamt.

Leases of fixed assets where all the risks and ndsmeelated to their ownership are maintained ley@noup are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases pitalczed at the leases inception at the lowerhef fair value of
the leased property and the present value of thenmaim lease payments. Each lease payment is aqmpentti
between the reduction of the liability and the fioa charge so that a fixed interest rate on thaireng financial
liability is achieved. The respective lease lidla$, net of finance charges, are included in liids. The part of
the finance charge relating to finance leasesdsgmrized in the income statement over the leasedFassets
acquired through finance leases are depreciatattioweshorter of their useful life and the leasente
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(b) Group Company as a lessor

The Group leases assets only through operatingede@Bperating lease income is recognized in theniec
statement of each period proportionally duringpgléod of the lease.

2.7 Tangible Assets

Fixed assets are reported in the financial staté&snmahacquisition cost minus accumulated depreciatind
possible impairment. The acquisition cost includitshe directly attributable expenses for the asitjan of the
assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's ngraynount or recognized as a separate asset, @pepte, only
when it is probable that future economic benefitsoaiated with the item will flow to the Group aheé cost of

the item can be measured reliably. The repair aathtenance cost is recorded in the results wheh &ic
realized.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other PP&lculated using the straight line method oveirtuseful
life as follows:

- Buildings ars
40 Y
- Mechanical equipment
years
5-7
- Vehicles ears
5-7 7
- Furniture, fittings and equipment
5.7 Yyears

The residual values and useful economic life of RRESubject to reassessment at least at eacttbalheet date.

When the book values of PPE exceed their recovenadle, the difference (impairment) is postechimincome
statement as expense (note 2.10).

Upon the sale of PPE, any difference between tbegeds and the depreciable amount is recordedoéis qr
loss in the results.

Financial assets concerning the construction oétasare being capitalized for the period needed thm
completion of the construction. All other financédpenses are recognized in the income statement.

2.8 Intangible assets
(@ Goodwill

Goodwill represents the difference between acqorsitost and the fair value of the subsidiary’siggshare as
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arising frorqaisitions of subsidiaries is recognised in intalgyassets.
Goodwill is not depreciable, and is tested for impant annually and recognised at cost, less ampaiment
losses. Goodwill losses cannot be reversed.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating unitsifopairment testing. Allocation is made to thosetsiir cash

generating unit groups which are expected to befrefin the business combinations which created gilbdand
is recognised in line with the operating segment.
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Profit and losses from the disposal of an undemntakinclude the book value of the goodwill of thedartaking
sold.

Negative goodwill is written off in profit and loss
(b) Software

Software licenses are valued at acquisition cast tepreciation. Depreciation is accounted for With straight
line method during the useful lives which vary frano 3 years.

2.9 Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources

The expenses for exploration for and evaluatiomioferal resources are examined per area to berexpénd are
capitalized the cash in hand is valued in the afeaxploration. If no commercial viability for ekqation of
mineral resources is succeeded, then the expensesagnized in the income statement. The capdtiddin is
made either in Tangible Assets or in IntangibleeAssccording to the nature of the expense.

At the stage of exploration and evaluation no deipt®n is recognized. If marketable inventories found, then
the assets resulting from the exploration and exaln are reviewed for impairment.

Intangible and tangible assets regarding explanaiod evaluation of mineral resources expensedegneciated
using the unit-of-production method. The depreociatiates are determined by the amount of invers@igected
to be gained by the existing facilities using tléstng quarrying methods.

2.10 Impairment of assets

Assets with an indefinite useful life are not degiméed, and are subject to impairment testing oararual basis,
and when certain events or changes to the circmressasuggest that their carrying value may noebewverable.
Assets that are depreciated are subject to impairedit when indications exist that their bookueais not
recoverable. Impairment loss is recognised foratmunt by which the fixed asset's carrying valueeess its
recoverable value. The recoverable value is thedridgpetween fair value, reduced by the cost reduive the
disposal, and the value in use (current value sfi dows anticipated to be generated based on gmagement’'s
estimates of future financial and operating coonda). For the calculation of impairment losses etsssare
classified in the minimum cash generating unitsy Aon-financial assets, apart from goodwill, whiwve been
impaired are reassessed for possible impairmentsal/on each balance sheet date.

2.11 Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The financial instruments of the Group have beassdified to the following categories accordinghe bbjective
for which each investment was undertaken. Managemetermines the classification of its financiatets at
initial recognition and re-evaluates this desigmatt every reporting date.

(&) Financial instruments valued at fair value thgh the income statement

These comprise assets that are held for tradingriv@ltives are classified as held for trading, @xaghen they
are designated as hedges.
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Assets falling under this category are recordeth@current assets if they are held for tradingopses or are
expected to be sold within 12 months from the badagheet date.

(b) Borrowings and receivables

These include non-derivative financial assets Wiitad or predefined payments which are not tradeddtive
markets and there is no intention of selling thefihey are included in current assets, except fosehwith
maturities greater than 12 months after the balasiteet date. These are classified as non-curresgtsas
Borrowings and receivables are included in theeradd other receivables account in the Statemehinaihcial
Position.

(c) Financial assets available for sale

These include non-derivative financial assets &nateither designated as such or cannot be inclindaaly of the
previous categories. They are included in nonesurassets unless management intends to disposee of
investment within 12 months of the balance shett.da

2.11.2 Recognition and Measurement

The purchase and sales of investments are recéodexh the trade-date, which is the date on whiwh Group

commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investnaatmitially recognised at their fair value, pkigpenses directly
related to the transaction, with the exceptiorhoke assets, regarding expenses directly relatén tvansaction,
which are valued at their fair value through prafiid loss. Financial assets valued at fair valugutgh profit and

loss are initially recognised at fair value, ar@hBaction expenses are recognised in results pettied they were
incurred. Investments are eliminated when the rightash flows from the investments ends or issfeared and
the Group has transferred in effect all risks awlards implied by the ownership.

Then available for sale financial assets are vahtefdir value and the relative gains or lossesrecerded to an
equity reserve till those assets are sold or cheriaed as impaired. Upon sale or when assetshamacterised as
impaired, the gains or losses are transferred ¢oirthome statement. Impairment losses recognize@sults
cannot be reversed through profit and loss.

Borrowings and receivables, as well as financiaktsheld to maturity are recognised at net bosk lcased on
the effective rate method.

The realized and unrealized profits or lossesragifiom changes in the fair value of financial &ssehich are
valued at fair value through the income statemamet,recognized in the profit and loss of the pedodng which
they occur.

The fair values of financial assets that are traidedctive markets are defined by their prices. Ron-traded
assets, fair values are defined with the use ofiataln techniques such as analysis of recent tctinsa,
comparative items that are traded and discountsidl ftaws.

2.11.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet datenthette is objective evidence that a financiaébes a group

of financial assets is impaired. In the case ofitggsecurities classified as available for salesignificant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the secubigow its cost is considered as an indicator taisecurities are
impaired If impairment is demonstrated, accumulated lossqguity which is the difference between the cost of
acquisition and the fair value shall be carriedrdeeresults. Impairment losses of equity instrutegecognised

in the income statement are not reversed througimttome statement.

The impairment test for receivables is describenbite 2.13.
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2.12  Inventory

Inventories are valued at the lower of acquisitimst and net realisable value. The cost is cakedlasing the
weighted average cost method. The cost of end ptedand semi-finished inventories includes costiedign,
materials, average working cost and a proportioth@fgeneral cost of production.

Investments in properties to which a constructiatiates aiming at a future sale are re-classifiednventories at
book value at the balance sheet date. From nowwenwill be calculated at the lowest value betwinencost and
net realisable value. Financial expenses are bidad in the acquisition cost for inventories. Tiet realizable
value is estimated based on the stock’s curreesgalice, within the framework of ordinary businassvities,
less any possible selling expenses, wherever saaleaconcurs.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fatue and subsequently measured at amortized sigg the
effective interest method, except if the discountcome is not important, less provision for impann A
provision for impairment of trade receivables itablished when there is objective evidence thatGheup will
not be able to collect all of the amounts due, atiog to the original terms of receivables.

Trade receivables comprise of commercial papershates payable from customers.

Serious problems that the customer encountergpdksibility of bankruptcy or financial reorganizatiand the
inability of scheduled payments considered to hdence that the receivable value must be impaiFad.amount
of the provision is the difference between the &s®arrying value and the present value of eseéuahdiiture cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest ratee Bmount of the provision is recognized as an res@eén the
income statement.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, sight dgpasd short-term investments of up to 3 montbith high
liquidity and low risk.

2.15 Share capital

The share capital includes the common shares dCtmpany. Whenever, any Group company purchasessh
of the Company (Own shares), the consideration jgagteducted from equity attributable to the Graugquity
holders until the shares are cancelled or dispo§etihe profit or loss from the sale of own shaesesecognised
directly to equity. Direct expenses for the isstislmres appear net of any relevant income taxftbededucted
from equity.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair valuest of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings saresequently
stated at net book cost, using the effective isterate method. Any difference between the procérds of
transaction costs) and the redemption value isgmrized in the income statement over the period hef t
borrowings using the effective interest rate method
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Borrowings are classified as current liabilitiedass the Group has an unconditional right to deéttlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the ala sheet date.

2.17 Current and deferred taxation

Income tax for the period comprises current anctidefl taxation. Tax is recognised in the incoméestant,
unless relevant to amounts recognised in other celmmsive income or directly in equity. In thiseasx is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or equagpectively.

Income tax on profit is calculated in accordancthwhie tax legislation established as of the baasteet date in
the countries where the Group operates, and isgresed as expense in the period during which proéis
generated. The management regularly evaluates #sescwhere the applicable tax legislation requires
interpretation. Where necessary, estimates are foadee amounts expected to be paid to tax auibsri

Deferred income tax is determined using the lisbithethod on temporary differences arising betwientax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrgimgunts, as shown in the financial statements.dEfierred

income tax is not accounted for if it arises framtial recognition of an asset or liability in afrsaction, other
than a business combination, that at the time etridinsaction affects neither the accounting otakable profit
or loss. Deferred tax is determined using the tags and laws in force as of the date of the balaheet, and
expected to be in force when the deferred tax vabées will be due or deferred tax liabilities vk repaid.

Deferred tax receivables are recognised to theneshat there could be future taxable gains tothegemporary
difference that gives rise to the deferred taxikeddes.

Deferred tax receivables and liabilities are offsay if the offsetting of tax receivables and lldtes is permitted
by law, and provided that deferred tax receivakbled liabilities are determined by the same tax @itthto the
tax paying entity or different entities, and théeimtion has been expressed to proceed to settlcloyewhy of
offset.

Deferred income tax is recognized for the tempodifferences that result from investments in sulbsids and
associates, except for the case where the revafrfad temporary differences is controlled by the@ and it is
possible that the temporary differences will notéeersed in the foreseeable future.

2.18 Employee benefits

() Post-employmertienefits

The employee benefits after their retirement ineldéfined contribution programs and defined bemetigrams.
The accrued cost of defined contribution prograsnecognized as expense during the relevant period.

The liability that is reported in the Statementafancial Position with respect to this scheméésgresent value
of the liability for the defined benefit less thadrfvalue of the scheme’s assets (if there are)saath the changes
that arise from any actuarial profit or loss ané #ervice cost. The commitment of the defined benef

calculated annually by an independent actuary thi¢huse of the projected unit credit method. Therest rate

on long-term Greek treasury bonds is used for disting purposes. Due to the current financial aimstances,

the European Central Bank bond curve was usedaitistEGreek government bonds.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from adjustmbatged on historical data which are less or mae 9% of the
accumulated liability are posted to the income estetnt over the average remaining service liveshef t
employees participating in the plan. The costlfiergervice time is directly recognized in the rissekcept for the
case where the scheme’s changes depend on theyemgloemaining service with the company. In sudase
the service cost is booked in the results usingtiaght line method within the maturity period.
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(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employmetgrisiinated before the normal retirement date, loerwan
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchamginése benefits. The Group recognizes termindtérefits
when it is demonstrably committed to either: teratiimg the employment of current employees accortiing
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdval; or providing termination benefits as a resfltan offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefilisdadue more than 12 months after balance shate dre
discounted.

In case of an employment termination where them@misnability to assess the number of employeasséosuch
benefits, a disclosure for a contingent liabiléyniade, but no accounting treatment is followed.

2.19 Provisions
Provisions for outstanding legal cases are recegnizhen: there is an obligation (legal or consivegtas a result

of past events, their settlement through an outfiéwesources is probable and the exact amourtiteobbligation
can be reliably estimated.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Income mainly arises from technical projects, opegaleases or sales of properties, production taade of
quarrying products.

Revenue and profit from construction contracts r@@ognised according to IAS 11 as described in 2024
hereinafter.

Revenue from operating leases is recognized innt@me statement using the straight line methodnduthe
lease period. When the Group provides incentiwdtstclients, the cost of these incentives is gaixed through
the lease period with the straight line method dédely of the income from the lease.

Income from the provision of services and real testaanagement are recorded in the period duringhwtiie
services are rendered, based on the stage of ciionpdd the service in relation to total servicese provided.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basisguthe effective rate method. In case of impammef
borrowings and receivables, interest income is geised using the rate which discounts future fldes
impairment purposes.

In the case where the Group acts as a representti®zy commission and not to the gross incomecdsrded as
income.

Dividends are accounted for as income when the t@teceive payment is established.

2.21 Contracts for projects under construction
Expenses regarding construction contracts are nésed) when they occur.

When the result of a construction contract caneatetiably assessed, only the expenses realisexbacted to be
collected are recognised as income from the cantrac
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When the result of a construction contract candbably assessed, such contract’s income and ezpemt be
recognised during the term of contract as incontk etpenses, respectively. The Group uses the gageiof
completion method to estimate the appropriate amot@iincome and expense to be recognised for aicert
period. The stage of completion is calculated dasethe expenses which have been realised upetbalance
sheet date compared to the total estimated expdéosesch contract. If it is possible that theatatost of the
contract will exceed total income, then anticipdtesses are directly recognised in profit and Esgexpenses.

In order to determine the cost realised till the efithe period, any expenses relating to futuskgancluded in
the contract are exempted and presented as wqutogress. The total realised cost and recognisetfit p loss
for each contract is compared with sequential icestill the end of the financial year.

Where the realised expenses plus the net profis (lesses) recognised exceed the sequential irsyoibe
occurring difference is presented as a receivabi@ construction contract customers in the acctlirdde and
other receivables”. When the sequential invoiceseed the realised expenses plus the net profis (kesses)
recognised, the balance is presented as a liabiltsards construction contract customers in the@aec“Trade
and other payables”.

2.22 Dividend allocation

The distribution of dividends to the shareholddrshe parent company is recognized as a liabilittha date on
which the distribution is approved by the Generalelting of the shareholders.

2.23 Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at fhgivalue where there is a reasonable assuramatetth grant
will be received and the Group will comply with atipulated conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferredracognized in the income statement to match twémthe
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants regarding the purchase of fisseta or the construction of projects are includddng term

liabilities as deferred state grants and are reizegnas income through profit and loss using theigtt line
method according to the asset expected useful life.

2.24 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets hekhlie and stated at the lower of carrying amoudtfair value
less costs to sell if their carrying amount israatied to be recovered by the Group through a safesdction
rather than through their use.
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2.25 Reclassifications and rounding of items

The numbers contained in these financial statenteamis been rounded to thousand Euros. Possibkretiifes
that may occur are due to rounding.

Among the Company’s accounts “Loans to relatedigelrtand “Other receivables- Related parties” f602,
reclassification was made to the amount of €5,86i¢and for comparability purposes (note 14). Tames
amount was also reclassified in Cash Flows for 2008 “Loans (granted to)/ repaid by related paiti® the
“Decrease/ (increase) of receivables”.
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3 Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to several financial riskhsagcmarket risk (changes to prices for the pubagroperty,
raw material such as iron, cement, etc), credk, figuidity risk, foreign exchange risk and intstaate risk.
Financial risks are associated with the followingahcial instruments: accounts receivable, cash eaxh
equivalents, accounts payable and other liabilided debt liabilities. The accounting principlegereed to the
above financial instruments are presented in Note 2

Risk management is monitored by the finance divisiand more specifically by the central Financial
Management Division of the Group, and is determibgdlirectives, guidelines and rules approved leyBbard

of Directors with regard to rate risk, credit rigke use of derivative and non-derivative instruteeand the
short-term investment of cash.

@) Market Risk

Market risk is related to the business sectors atlee Group operates. Indicatively, the Group {sosed to the
risk from the change of the value of properties imdents, change in the conditions prevailinghia construction
market and the raw material purchase markets, aldtigrisks associated with the completion of petgein joint
ventures. The Group’s departments are closely mong the trends in the individual markets in whithperates
and plan actions for prompt and efficient adaptatmthe individual markets’ new circumstances.

i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is active in foreign countries, mostlytlie Middle East and the Balkans (mainly Romanijth
respect to its activities in the Middle East, the@ is exposed to foreign exchange risks, derivivagnly from
the parity of local currencies (e.g. AED, QAR), #xchange rate of which is linked to the US Dolks,well as
with the exchange rate of the US Dollar to EuramcBeds are made in local currency and in US Dokard
despite the fact that the larger portion of thet emsl expenses are made in the same currencygigriaexchange
risk exists for the remaining part, which was righ#icant in the financial year. The foreign exolge risk, where
this is considered to be significant, will be s#twith the use of derivative forward contracts.eBe derivatives
are priced at their fair values and are recognéed receivable or a liability in the financialtetaents.

With regard to operations in Romania, transactiares carried out in the local currency and in Eurdsad
Romanian LEU (RON) been appreciated/ depreciate®%yas of 31/12/2010, (2009: 5%) to EUR, all other
variables being unchanged, profit before taxegterGroup would be increased by €121 thousand (2€093
thousand), or reduced by €134 thousand (2009: €i8@sand) respectively, as a result of the exchaos®
profit from the conversion of receivables, lialig and cash of the companies established in R@mani

i) Cash flow risk and risk arising from fair valebdange due to a change in interest rates

The Group holds significant interest-bearing assetsprising sight deposits, short-term bank depasid bonds.
The Group is exposed to risk from fluctuationsrierest rates, arising from bank loans with flogtiates. The
Group is exposed to floating interest rates prevgin the market, which affect both the finan@akition and the
cash flows. Cost of debt may increase as a refuhiese changes thus creating losses or it caredseron the
occurrence of unexpected events.

Regarding long-term loan liabilities, the Group’sudigement systematically and constantly monitdesést rate
fluctuations and assesses the need to take relpeaittons to offset risks, when and if necesshryhe context
of risk offsetting, Group companies may enter ias¢iswap contracts and other derivatives.

A significant part of the Group’s loans are signeith floating rates and the largest part of Groapnis is in
Euros. As a consequence interest rate risk is pitimaderived from the fluctuations of Euro interasttes and
secondly from the interest rate fluctuations oreotturrencies in which bank loans exist (US DolgED, Qatari
riyal, etc).
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The Group constantly monitors interest rate treadswell as the duration and nature of subsidiafieancing
needs. Decisions on loan terms as well as theioplétetween variable and fixed interest rate anesictered
separately on a case by case basis.

(b) Credit Risk

The Group has developed policies in order to enthakttransactions are conducted with customesufiicient
credit rating. A large part of the Group’s inconoeisces from projects implemented on behalf of thee®& State.

Cash and cash equivalents, investments and firlatei@ative contracts potentially involve credik as well. In
such cases, the risk may arise from counterpaifiyréato fulfil their obligations towards the Groum order to
manage this credit risk, the Group sets limitsht® degree of exposure for each financial institytieithin the
scope of the policies of the Board f Directors.

(c) Liquidity Risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group budgets amhitors its cash flows and acts accordingly stoalsave
adequate cash available and bank credit linesdneplGroup possesses significant non utilized tiegis in
order to fulfill its needs for cash in hand thatynaaise.

Group liquidity is monitored on regular intervalg Management. In the following table, an analydissooup
debt maturities is presented as of 31 December 26d®009 respectively:

All amounts in ,000 EUR.

Amounts in ,000 EUR
31 December 2010
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over 5

year and 2 years and5years years Total
Trade and other payables 382,077 2,430 - - 384,507
Financial leases 2,935 145 99 44 3,224
Borrowings 259,237 14,499 30,947 - 304,683

31 December 2009
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over 5

year and 2years and5years years Total
Trade and other payables 422,105 284 196 - 422,585
Financial leases 3,933 3,727 419 - 8,078
Borrowings 208,150 43,109 818 - 252,077

The above amounts are presented in the contracmmldiscounted cash flows and therefore are navakgnt to
the respective amounts shown in the financial stateés with respect to Trade and other payabledilltias
from leasing activities and Borrowings.

The Trade and Other liabilities breakdown is exei®f Advances from customers, Amounts due toausts
for contract work, and Social security and othaeta
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Analysis of the Group’s Loan Vulnerability to Interest Rate Fluctuations.

A reasonable and possible interest rate changevdayty five base points (increase/decrease 0,25%)dWead to
the decrease / increase in profit before taxe2€d0, all other variables being unchanged, by €h2@isand
(2009: €597 thousand). It is noted that the aforgiored change in profit before taxes is calculaiedhe loan
balances at year end and does not include theiymsffect of interest income from cash depositd aash
equivalents.

3.2 Cash management

Capital management is aiming in the safeguard ef ¢bntinuity of operations of Group companies, the
achievement of its developing plans along with @ooredit rating

For the evaluation of Group’s credit rating, Grongt debt must be evaluated (i.e. total long teroh ghrort term
liabilities to financial institutions minus cashcacash equivalents).

The Group’s net borrowings as of 31.12.2010 areilget in the following table:

All amounts in ,000 EUR.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Short term bank borrowings 250,262 205,247
Long term bank loans 43,965 46,903
Total borrowings 294,227 252,149
Less:Cash and cash equivalents 181,328 246,274
Net Debt/Cash 112,899 5,876
Total Group Equity 389,921 409,682
Total Capital 502,820 415,558
Capital Leverage Ratio 0.225 0.014

The capital leverage ratio as of 31.12.2010 for@neup is calculated at 22.5 %. This ratio is citad as the
guotient of net debt to total employed capital. fiotal equity plus net debt).

At parent company level, total borrowings as 0fl212010 stood at €125.5 million, corresponding§36 million
long-term, and €95.5 million short-term borrowings.

3.3 Fair value estimation

From 1 January 2009 the Group adopted the revieeslon of IFRS 7 for financial assets accountedafofair
value at the balance sheet date. According to ltgeareview, financial assets and liabilities dessified in the
following levels, depending on the method of defarmng fair value:

- Tier 1: for assets traded in an active marketwahdse fair value is determined by the market griemadjusted)
of similar assets.

- Tier 2: for assets whose fair value is determibgdfactors related to market data, either diretlsices) or
indirectly (prices derivatives).
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- Tier 3: for assets whose fair value is not deteeth by observations from the market, but is malrdged on

internal estimates.

The following table presents the Group’s finaneissets and liabilities at fair value as of 31 Ddoen2010 and

31 December 2009:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Financial assets

Financial assets available for sale

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Financial assets

Financial assets available for sale

31 December 2010
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

CLASSIFICATION

LEVEL 1 LEVEL 3 TOTAL

372 24 396

31 December 2009
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

CLASSIFICATION

LEVEL 1 LEVEL 3 TOTAL

404 32 436

The following table presents the changes to Leviai@hcial assets for the financial years ende@biecember

2010 and 31 December 2009:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

31 December 2010
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31 December 2009
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

LEVEL 3

Financial
assets
available for
sale
At year start 32
Disposal of subsidiary “)
Transfer to associates
(Sales) (5)
At year end 24

LEVEL 3
Financial
assets
available for
TOTAL sale TOTAL
32 At year start 102 102
@) Acquisition/ absorption of 4
subsidiary 4
Transfer to associates ®) ®)
®) (Sales) (68) (68)
24 At year end 32 32

(33) / (68)



‘ AKTOR SA
AKTOR Annual Financial Statements
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2010

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments of thenanagement

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluatetl aae based on historical experience and expecntatf
future events that are believed to be reasonalulerithe circumstances.

4.1 Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

Annual financial statements along with the accompannotes and reports may involve certain judgmentd
calculations that refer to future events regardipgrations, developments, and financial performaofcéhe
Company and the Group. Despite the fact that seshraptions and calculations are based on the basthye
knowledge of the Company's and the Group's managewmith regard to current conditions and actiot® t
actual results may eventually differ from calcidas and assumptions taken into consideration impteparation
of the Company's and the Group's annual finantaa¢ments.

Assessments and assumptions that involve imparitgnbf causing future material adjustments todksets’ and
liabilities’ book values:

(a) Estimates regarding the accounting conductosfstruction projects according to IAS 11 “Constiioct
Contracts”

(i) Realization of income from construction contracisdxl on estimation of the percentage completion of
the project.

For the estimation of the percentage completiothefconstruction projects in progress according to
which the Group recognizes income from constructammtracts, the Management estimates the
expected expenses yet to be made until the complefithe projects.

(i)  Requests for compensation for additional work niaelgond the contractual agreement.

The Group’sManagement estimatéise amount tde receivedor additional work and recognizes income
under the percentage of completion as long asisiders that the collection of this amount is pbiba

(b) Provisions

Income tax

Estimates are required in determining the provis@mrincome taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determioatis uncertain. Where the final tax outcome oéhe
matters is different from the amounts that werdidlty recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the gkmiowhich such determination is made.

(c)Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments not listedan active market is determined using valuation
methods which require using assumptions and judtgng@he Group makes assumptions based mostly
on current market conditions in the preparatiofir@ncial statements.

4.2 Considerable judgments of the Management on the afipation of the accounting
principles

Distinction between investments in property andetsused by the Group.

The Group determines whether an asset is charaeteds investment property. In order to form the
relevant assumption, the Group considers the extemthich a property generates cash flows, for the
most part independently of the rest of the assetsed by the company. Assets used by the Group
generate cash flows which are attributed not omlthe properties but also to other assets usedraith
the production procedure or to the purchasing o
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5 Property, plant and equipment

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Assets
Furniture & under
Land & Mechanical other Constructio
Amounts in ,000 EUR buildings Vehicles equipment equipment n Total
Cost
1-Jan-09 56,152 38,895 198,430 19,871 6,724 320,072
Currency translation differences (2,098) (241) (707) (320) - (3,365)
Disposal of subsidiary (867) (63) (2,069) - (3,719) (6,717)
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary 114 3 16 1 - 133
Additions except for leasing 1,587 2,593 21,097 8,192 8,005 41,474
Additions with leasing - 50 1,246 - - 1,296
Disposals (1,476) (2,513) (6,050) (3,219) (1,136) (14,394)
Transfer from Investments in Property 11,584 - - - - 11,584
Reclassifications from assets under
construction 2,857 12 830 232 (3,932) -
31-Dec-09 67,854 38,736 212,793 24,757 5,942 350,082
1-Jan-10 67,854 38,736 212,793 24,757 5,942 350,082
Currency translation differences (25) 158 2,456 1,328 - 3,917
Disposal of subsidiary (144) 3) (1,337) (20) - (1,494)
Acquisition of a J/V 1 50 3 - - 54
Additions except for leasing 1,847 1,276 8,158 2,947 2,065 16,292
Additions with leasing - - 86 - - 86
Disposals (2,647) (1,758) (6,470) (1,014) (103) (11,993)
Reclassifications from assets under
construction (3,300) - 2,096 - 1,203 -
31-Dec-10 63,586 38,459 217,785 28,006 9,107 356,943
Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-09 (5,311) (25,177) (104,747) (12,025) - (147,260)
Currency translation differences (11) 95 235 113 - 433
Depreciation for the year (1,637) (3,612) (21,204) (3,106) - (29,559)
Transfer from Investments in Property (97) - - - - (97)
Disposals 411 1,976 2,529 417 - 5,333
31-Dec-09 (6,645) (26,718) (123,186) (14,601) - (171,150)
Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-10 (6,645) (26,718) (123,186) (14,601) - (171,150)
Currency translation differences (29) (29) (829) (647) - (1,524)
Depreciation for the year (1,898) (3,622) (23,434) (5,033) - (33,987)
Disposals 35 1,211 3,315 905 - 5,465
31-Dec-10 (8,527) (29,158) (144,135) (19,376) - (201,195)
Net book value as of 31 December 2009 61,210 12,018 89,606 10,156 5,942 178,932
Net book value as of 31 December 2010 55,060 9,301 73,650 8,631 9,107 155,748
Leased assets included in above data under firldeasng:
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Mechanical Mechanical
Vehicles equipment Total Vehicles equipment Total
Cost — Capitalised financial
leases 134 1,910 2,044 232 4,487 4,719
Accumulated depreciation (53) (1,232) (1,285) (232) (2,085) (2,318)
Net book value 81 678 759 - 2,402 2,402
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The reduction seen in the cost of capitalised tepaind related accumulated depreciation in 2018uésto the
disposal of subsidiary GEMACO SA in Q3 2010.

COMPANY FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Cost

1-Jan-09

Currency translation differences
Additions except for leasing
Disposals

Reclassifications from assets under
construction

31-Dec-09

1-Jan-10

Currency translation differences
Additions except for leasing
Disposals

Reclassifications from assets under
construction

31-Dec-10

Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-09

Currency translation differences
Depreciation for the year
Disposals

31-Dec-09

Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-10

Currency translation differences
Depreciation for the year
Disposals

31-Dec-10

Net book value as of 31 December
2009

Net book value as of 31 December
2010

No liens exist on fixed assets.

Assets
Furniture under
Land & Mechanical & other Constructi
buildings Vehicles equipment  equipment on Total
25,268 26,168 130,073 7,887 1,437 190,834
(13) (35) (49) 4) - (101)
436 1,533 2,181 2,220 888 7,259
(818) (1,769) (1,482) (2,055) - (6,124)
883 - - 232 (1,114) -
25,756 25,897 130,723 8,280 1,211 191,868
25,756 25,897 130,723 8,280 1,211 191,868
(8) ) 18 5 - 8
749 967 9,619 270 500 12,105
(34) (1,024) (943) 14) - (2,015)
(3,300) - - - 3,300 -
23,163 25,834 139,417 8,540 5,011 201,965
(1,685) (20,987) (84,834) (6,385) - (113,890)
5 18 20 2 - 45
(251) (1,516) (8,690) (643) - (12,101)
339 1,525 777 207 - 2,847
(1,592) (20,961) (92,727) (6,819) - (122,099)
(1,592) (20,961) (92,727) (6,819) - (122,099)
1 5 (14) 2) - (20)
(262) (1,449) (9,040) (612) - (11,363)
34 851 687 14 - 1,586
(1,819) (21,554) (101,094) (7,419) - (131,886)
24,164 4,936 37,996 1,461 1,211 69,769
21,344 4,280 38,323 1,121 5,011 70,079
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6 Intangible assets

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Software Goodwill Other Total
Cost
1-Jan-09 2,377 8,026 59 10,463
Currency translation differences (20) - - (20)
Disposal of subsidiary - (2,726) - (2,726)
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary 4) 1,499 - 1,495
Additions 156 - - 156
Disposals (25) - (19) (44)
31-Dec-09 2,484 6,799 40 9,323
1-Jan-10 2,484 6,799 40 9,323
Currency translation differences 41 - - 41
Disposal of subsidiary - (2,477) - (1,477)
Additions 37 - - 37
Disposals (66) - - (66)
31-Dec-10 2,496 5,323 40 7,859
Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-09 (2,052) - ) (2,054)
Currency translation differences 14 - - 14
Depreciation for the year (247) - (20) (257)
Disposals 21 - 2 23
31-Dec-09 (2,264) - (10) (2,274)
1-Jan-10 (2,264) - (10) (2,274)
Currency translation differences (28) - - (28)
Depreciation for the year (149) - (20) (159)
Disposals 66 - - 66
31-Dec-10 (2,376) - (20) (2,396)
Net book value as of 31 December 2009 220 6,799 30 7,049
Net book value as of 31 December 2010 120 5,323 20 5,463

For acquisitions that took place during the yeadd®ahe estimates of fair values of assets andlitiab of the
acquired businesses and the resulting goodwill fieadized, as required by IFRS 3. Specifically:

With regard to the goodwill of €1,499 thousandniradhe acquisition of KARAPANOU BROS SA by
HELLENIC QUARRIES SA, no change was made upon fi#adion. In Q1 2010, said company was sold to third
parties outside the Group.
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The goodwill of €-1,477 thousand shown in Dispagadubsidiary for the current year correspondsoimganies
KARAPANOU BROS (€-1,499 thousand) and GEMACO SAZ&RBousand) which were sold to parties outside
the Group in 2010.

COMPANY FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR
COMPANY FIGURES

Software Total
Cost
1-Jan-09 1,368 1,368
Currency translation differences 2) 2)
Additions 11 11
31-Dec-09 1,377 1,377
1-Jan-10 1,377 1,377
Additions 1 1
Disposals (3) (3)
31-Dec-10 1,375 1,375
Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-09 (1,298) (1,298)
Currency translation differences 1 1
Depreciation for the year (39) (39)
31-Dec-09 (1,336) (1,336)
1-Jan-10 (1,336) (1,336)
Depreciation for the year (5) (5)
Disposals 3 3
31-Dec-10 (1,337) (1,337)
Net book value as of 31 December
2009 42 42
Net book value as of 31 December
2010 38 38
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7 Investment property

Amounts in ,000 EUR

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES
Cost
1-Jan-09 11,584
Transfer from/to PPE (11,584)
31-Dec-09 -

Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-09

Transfer from/to PPE
31-Dec-09

(97)
97

The Group recorded no change in investment pragsedtiring the current year.

8

Group Participations

8.aThe companies of the Group consolidated with tilecbnsolidation method are:

PARENT %
REGISTER DIREC INDIRE UNAUDITED
S/IN_ | COMPANY ED OFFICE T CT TOTAL YEARS
1 AKTOR FM SA GREECE 65% 65.00% 2010
2 D. KOUGIOUMTZOPOULOS SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2010
3 DIMITRA SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2010
4 HELLENIC QUARRIES SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2003-2010
5 GREEK NURSERIES SA GREECE 50% °0.00% 2010
6 HELLENIC LIGNITES SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2010
7 KASTOR SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2009-2010
8 LATOMIA STILIDAS SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2007-2010
LATOMIKI IMATHIAS SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2008-2010
10 PLO —KAT SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2010
11 TOMI SA GREECE 100% 100.00% 2007-2010
12 PSITALIA MARITIME COMPANY GREECE 66.67% 66.67% 2005-2010
13 AKTOR BULGARIA SA BULGARIA 100% 100.00% 2009-2010
14 AKTOR CONSTRUCTION INTERNATIONAL LTD CYPRUS 100% 100.00% 2003-2010
15 AKTOR KUWAIT WLL KUWAIT 100% 100.00% -
16 AKTOR TECHNICAL CONSTRUCTION LLC UAE 0% 70.00% -
17 AL AHMADIAH AKTOR LLC UAE S0% 50.00% -
18 CAISSON SA GREECE 85% 85.00% 2010
19 DUBAI FUJAIRAH FREEWAY JV UAE 40% 30% 70.00% -
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100% |  100.00%

20 | GENERAL GULF HOLDINGS SPC BAHRAIN ° 0 2006-2010
100% 100.00%

21 | GULF MILLENNIUM HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS 00% 00.00% 2005-2010
7.02% 7.02%

22 | INSCUT BUCURESTI SA ROMANIA 67.02% 67.02% 1997-2010
20% 30% 70.00%
23 | JEBEL ALI SEWAGE TREATMENT PLANT JV UAE ’ ’ ’
MILLENNIUM CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT & 100% | 100.00%

24 | TRADING UAE

100% 100.00%

25 | SC AKTOROM SRL ROMANIA ° 0 2002-2010
100% | 100.00%

26 | SVENON INVESTMENTS LTD CYPRUS 00% 00.00% 2007-2010

The following companies had been consolidated & fimancial statements of the previous year, ie. o
31.12.2009 using the full method, but are not cbdated in the statements for the current year:

» GEMACO SA, due to its disposal to third partiesside the Group in Q3 2010.
»VARI VENTURES LIMITED, due to its disposal to thiyghrties outside the Group in Q2 2010.
» KARAPANOU BROS SA, due to its disposal to third fies outside the Group in Q1 2010.

8.b The companies of the Group consolidated with thétg method are the following:

PARENT %
REGISTER
ED UNAUDITE

S/IN_| COMPANY OFFICE DIRECT INDIRECT TOTAL D YEARS

1 BEPE KERATEAS SA GREECE 23.38% 23.38% 2010

2 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA GREECE 40.00% 40.00% 2010

3 HELLAS GOLD S.A. GREECE 5.00% 5.00% 2009-2010

4 PANTECHNIKI SA-D. KOUGIOUMTZOPOULOS SA GREECE 30.00% 30.00% 2010

5 CHELIDONA SA GREECE 50.00% 50.00% 1998-2010

SAUDI
6 EDRAKTOR CONSTRUCTION CO LTD ARABIA 50.00% 50.00% 2006-2010
7 EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS LTD CANADA 19.30% 19.30%

While consolidated in the financial statementshaf previous year, i.e. on 31.12.2009, LARKODOMI BAo
longer consolidated in these consolidated finanstalements using the net method, due to its didgosthird
parties in Q4 2010, without this having an impattlee Group’s results.

The result in row Share of profit/ (loss) from adates seen in the Income Statement, correspondilogses for
2010 to the amount of €7,002 thousand, mainly esldab EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS SA. The respective
amount for 2009 (losses of €1,322 thousand) maaigtes to EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS SA.

8.c The companies and joint ventures consolidated thighproportional consolidation are shown in thiéofeing
tables:

PARENT %
REGISTER
ED UNAUDITED
S/IN_| COMPANY OFFICE DIRECT INDIRECT TOTAL YEARS
1 STRAKTOR SA GREECE 50% 50.00% 2010
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Here follows a detailed table with the joint vertsiconsolidated using the proportional method.

In this table, in the columns under "First time Gwolidation”, 1 indicates those Joint Ventures ctidated for the
first time during the current period as newly elshied, while they had not been incorporated inrdspective
period last year, i.e. 31.12.2009 (indicator RPY).

REGISTER P/:/ORT FIRST TIME
s/ ED ICIPA | UNAUDITE | CONSOLIDATI
N | JOINT VENTURE OFFICE TION D YEARS ON
(1/0 | (IPPIRP
) Y)

1 | JIVAKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 75 2010 0 0
2 | JIVAKTOR SA - IMPREGILO SPA GREECE 60 2010 0 0
3 | JIVAKTOR SA - ALPINE MAYREDER BAU GmbH GREECE 50 2010 0 0
4 | JIVAKTOR SA - TODINI CONSTRUZIONI GENERALI S.P.A. GREECE 45 2010 0 0
5 | JIVTEO SA—AKTOR SA GREECE 49 2010 0 0
6 | JIVAKTOR SA - IMPREGILO SPA GREECE | 99.9 2005-2010 0 0

“JIV AKTOR SA — TERNA SA- BIOTER SA” — TERNA SA- BEDTER
7 | SA-AKTOR SA GREECE | 33.33 2010 0 0
8 | JIVAKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA - J & P AVAX SA GREECE 50 2010 0 0
9 | JIVAKTOR SA-J &P AVAX SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE | 43.48 2010 0

JIV AKTOR SA — MICHANIKI SA -MOCHLOS SA —ALTE SA -
10 | AEGEK GREECE | 45.42 2003-2010 0 0
11 | JIV AKTOR SA — X.I. KALOGRITSAS SA GREECE | 49.82 2010 0 0
12 | JIV AKTOR SA — X.I. KALOGRITSAS SA GREECE | 495 2010 0 0
13 | JIV AKTOR SA - J & P AVAX SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE | 43.8 2008-2010 0 0

JIV ATTIKI ODOS — CONSTRUCTION OF ELEFSINA-STAVROS-
14 | SPATA ROAD & W.IMITOS RINGROAD GREECE | 59.27 2008-2010 0 0
15 | JIV ATTIKAT SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30 2010 0 0
16 | JIV TOMI SA — AKTOR (APOSELEMI DAM) GREECE 100 2010 0 0
17 | JIVTEO SA —AKTOR SA GREECE 49 2010 0 0
18 | JIV SIEMENS AG — AKTOR SA — TERNA SA GREECE 50 2006-2010 0 0
19 | J/V AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 70 2010 0 0

JIV AKTOR SA — SIEMENS SA - VINCI CONSTRUCTIONS
20 | GRANDS PROJETS GREECE 70 2007-2010 0 0
21 | JIVAKTOR SA —AEGEK - J & P AVAX-SELI GREECE 30 2010 0 0
22 | JIV TERNA SA—-MOCHLOS SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 35 2008-2010 0 0
23 | JIV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30 2010 0 0
24 | JIVAKTOR SA — TERNA SA - J&P AVAX SA GREECE | 11.11 2009-2010 0 0
25 | JIV J&P-AVAX —TERNA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE | 33.33 2007-2010
26 | JIVAKTOR SA — ERGO SA GREECE 50 2010 0 0
27 | JIVAKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 50 2010 0 0
28 | JIV AKTOR SA -LOBBE TZILALIS EUROKAT GREECE | 33.34 2010 0 0
29 | JIV AKTOR SA —PANTECHNIKI (PLATANOS) GREECE 100 2008-2010 0 0
30 | JIVAKTOR —TOMI- ATOMO GREECE 51 2010 0 0
31 | JIVAKTOR SA -JP AVAX SA-PANTECHNIKI SA-ATTIKAT SA GREECE | 59.27 2010 0 0
32 | JIVTEO SA -AKTOR SA GREECE 49 2010 0 0
33 | JIV AKTOR SA -TERNA SA GREECE 50 2010 0 0
34 | JIVATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30 2007-2010 0 0
35 | JIVAKTOR SA - STRABAG AG N1 GREECE 50 2010 0 0
36 | JIV KASTOR — AKTOR MESOGEIOS GREECE | 53.35 2010 0 0
37 | JIV (CARS) LARISAS (EXECUTOR) GREECE | 817 2010 0 0

JIV AKTOR SA -AEGEK-EKTER-TERNA(CONSTR. OBA
38 | HANGAR) EXECUTOR GREECE 52 2010 0 0
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39 | JIV ANAPLASI ANO LIOSION (AKTOR — TOMI) EXECUTOR GREECE | 100 2010 0 0
JIV TERNA-AKTOR-J&P-AVAX (COMPLETION OF MEGARON
40 | MUSIC HALL PHASE B — E/M) GREECE 30 2002-2010 0 0
JIV TERNA-AKTOR-J&P-AVAX (COMPLETION OF MEGARON
41 | MUSIC HALL PHASE B- CONSTR.) GREECE 30 2010
42 | JIV AKTOR SA— ALTE SA GREECE 50 2010
JIV ATHENA SA — THEMELIODOMI SA — AKTOR SA-
43 | KONSTANTINIDIS SA — TECHNERG SA.- TSAMPRAS SA GREECE 25 2007-2010 0 0
44 | JIV AKTOR SA - ALTE SA -EMPEDOS SA GREECE | 66.67 2010 0
45 | JIV AKTOR SA — ATHENA SA — EMPEDOS SA GREECE 74 2010 0 0
46 | JIV_GEFYRA GREECE | 15.48 | 2008-2010 0 0
47 | JIV_AEGEK — BIOTER SA — AKTOR SA — EKTER SA GREECE | 40 2009-2010 0 0
48 | JIV AKTOR SA —ATHENA SA-THEMELIODOMI SA GREECE 71 2010 0 0
49 | JIV AKTOR SA - J&P — AVAX SA GREECE 50 2010 0 0
50 | J/V AKTOR SA - THEMELIODOMI SA — ATHENA SA GREECE | 33.33 | 2007-2010 0 0
51 | J/V AKTOR SA - THEMELIODOMI SA — ATHENA SA GREECE | 66.66 | 2008-2010
JIV AKTOR SA -TOMI-ALTE-EMPEDOS (OLYMPIC VILLAGE
52 | LANDSCAPING) GREECE | 45.33 2010 0 0
JIV AKTOR SA -SOCIETE FRANCAISE EQUIPEMENT
53 | HOSPITALIER SA GREECE 65 2010 0 0
JIV THEMELIODOMI — AKTOR SA- ATHENA SA &TE -
PASSAVANT MASCHINENTECHNIK GmbH - GIOVANNI
54 | PUTIGNANO & FIGLI Srl GREECE | 53.33 | 2008-2010 0 0
55 | J/V TOMI SA - AKTOR SA (LAMIA HOSPITAL) GREECE | 100 2010 0 0
56 | J/V AKTOR SA - ATHENA SA -EMPEDOS SA GREECE | 49 2010 0 0
57 | JIV AKTOR SA —ATHENA SA-THEMELIODOMI SA GREECE | 63.68 2010 0 0
58 | J/V TODINI COSTRUZIONI GENERALI S.p AKTOR SA GREECE | 40 0 0 0
59 | J/V EKTER SA. — AKTOR SA GREECE 50 2010 0 0
JIV AKTOR SA — DOMOTECHNIKI SA — THEMELIODOMI SA —
60 | TERNA SA—ETETH SA GREECE 25 2010 0 0
61 | J/V ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 50 2006-2010 0 0
62 | J/V AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 70 2010 0 0
63 | J/V AKTOR SA— ATHENA SA GREECE 50 2008-2010 0 0
64 | JIV AKTOR SA-ERGOSYN SA GREECE 50 2010 0 0
65 | J/VJ. & P.-AVAX SA - AKTOR SA GREECE 50 2010 0 0
66 | J/V ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 50 2007-2010 0 0
67 | JV AKTOR COPRI KUWAIT 50 - 0 0
68 | JV QATAR QATAR 40 -
BULGARI
69 | JV AKTOR SA - AKTOR BULGARIA SA A 100 2010 0 0
BULGARI
70 | JV AKTOR SA - BIOSAR SA A 51 2010 1| RPY
JN TOMI SA — HLEKTOR SA (ANO LIOSIA LANDFILL - SEQION
71 | 1) GREECE | 59.61 2010 0 0
72 | JIV TOMI — MARAGAKIS ANDR. (2005) GREECE 65 2010 0 0
73 | JIV TOMI SA — ELTER SA GREECE 50 2009-2010 0 0
74 | JIV TOMI SA — AKTOR SA GREECE | 100 | 2009-2010 0 0
75 | JIV KASTOR SA — TOMI SA GREECE | 100 2010 0 0
76 | JIV KASTOR SA - ELTER SA GREECE | 50 2010 0 0
77 | JIV KASTOR SA —ERTEKA SA GREECE 50 2010 0 0
78 | JIV TOMI SA — ERGO SA — LAMDA TECHNIKI SA GREECE 50 2010 0 0
79 | JIV TOMI SA — TECHNOGNOSIA IPIROU GREECE 90 2010 0 0
80 | J/V ERGO SA — TOMI SA GREECE 15 2010 0 0
81 | J/V TOMI SA — ARSI SA GREECE 67 2010 0 0
82 | JIV TOMI SA — CHOROTECHNIKI SA GREECE 50 2010 0 0
83 | J/V TOMI SA- ATOMON SA (MYKONOS PORT) GREECE 50 2010 0 0
84 | JIV TOMI SA- ATOMON SA (CORFU PORT) GREECE 50 2010 0 0
85 | J/V TOMI SA —HELECTOR SA GREECE | 78.25 | 2007-2010 0 0
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86 | J/V KASTOR - P&C DEVELOPMENT GREECE 70 2010 0 0
87 | J/IV AKTOR SA ARCHIRODON-BOSKALIS(THERMAIKI ODOS) GREECE 50 2010 0 0
88 | J/VAKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 55 2010 0 0
JIV AKTOR SA -J&P AVAX SA-TERNA SA — Foundation tiie
89 | Hellenic World — PHASE A GREECE 56 2010 0 0
JIV AKTOR SA -J&P AVAX SA-TERNA SA- Foundation ohe
90 | Hellenic World — PHASE B GREECE 56 2010 0 0
91 | J/V AKTOR SA -ATHENA GREECE 50 2009-2010 0 0
92 | J/IV AKTOR SA -PANTECHNIKI-INTRAKAT GREECE 86.67 2007-2010 0 0
93 | J/V HOCHTIEF-AKTOR-J&P-VINCI-AEGEK-ATHENA GREECE 19.3 2008-2010 0 0
94 | JIV AKTOR — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 100 2007-2010 0 0
95 | J/V VINCI-J&P AVAX-AKTOR-HOCHTIEF-ATHENA GREECE 17 2008-2010 0 0
96 | J/IV AKTOR SA-STRABAG SA MARKETS GREECE 50 2010 0 0
97 | JIVKASTOR — ERGOSYN SA GREECE 70 2010 0 0
98 | J/IV AKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 65 2010 0 0
99 | J./V AKTOR SA -PANTRAK GREECE 80 2010 0 0
100 | J./V AKTOR SA - PANTECHNIKI GREECE 70 2009 - 2010 0 0
101 | J./V AKTOR SA - TERNA - J&P GREECE 33.33 2010 0 0
102 | J./V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A435) GREECE 50 2008-2010 0 0
103 | J./V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A437) GREECE 50 2007-2010 0 0
104 | J./V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A438) GREECE 50 2008-2010 0 0
105 | J./V ELTER SA —-KASTOR SA GREECE 15 2010 0 0
106 | J./V TERNA - AKTOR GREECE 50 2009-2010 0 0
107 | J./V AKTOR - HOCHTIEF GREECE 33 2009-2010 0 0
108 | J./V AKTOR - POLYECO GREECE 52 2010 0 0
109 | J./V AKTOR - MOCHLOS GREECE 70 2010 0 0
110 | J./V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA TREATMENT PLANT 1) GREECE 50 2008-2010 0 0
111 | J./V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA TREATMENT PLANT 2) GREECE 50 2008-2010 0 0
112 | J./V AKTOR SA- STRABAG AG GREECE 50 2010 0 0
113 | J./V EDISON — AKTOR SA GREECE 35 2009-2010 0 0
114 | J./V AKTOR — TOXOTIS GREECE 50 2010 0 0
115 | J./V*J./V TOMI - HELECTOR” — KONSTANTINIDIS GREECE 54.78 2008-2010 0 0
116 | JV QATAR QATAR 36 - 0 0
117 | JIV TOMI SA — AKTOR FACILITY MANAGEMENT GREECE 100 2010 0 0
118 | J./V AKTOR — TOXOTIS “ANTHOUPOLI METRO" GREECE 50 2010 0 0
119 | J/V AKTOR SA - ATHENA SA —GOLIOPOULOS SA GREECE 48 2009-2010 0 0
120 | JIV AKTOR SA — IMEK HELLAS SA GREECE 75 2010 0 0
121 | J./V AKTOR SA - TERNA SA GREECE 50 2010 0 0
122 | J/V ATOMON SA — TOMI SA GREECE 50 2009-2010 0 0
123 | J/V AKTOR SA — TOXOTIS SA GREECE 50 2010 0 0
124 | JIV AKTOR SA-ELTER SA GREECE 70 2009-2010 0 0
125 | JIV TOMI SA — AKTOR FM GREECE 100 2010 0 0
126 | JIV ERGOTEM —-KASTOR- ETETH GREECE 15 2009-2010 0 0
127 | JIV LMN SA — KARALIS K. - TOMI SA GREECE 20 2010 1 RPY
128 | JIV CONSTRUTEC SA —-KASTOR SA GREECE 30 0 1 RPY
JIV AKTOR SA — |. PAPAILIOPOULOS SA - DEGREMONT SA-
129 | DEGREMONT SPA GREECE 30 2010 1 RPY
130 | J/V AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA - NGA NETWORK DEVELOPMEN GREECE 50 2010 1 RPY

8.d Row ‘Investments in Joint Ventures’ of the consated Statement of Financial Position shows the
participation cost in other non important Joint Wees, standing at €920 thousand on 31.12.2010a8€868
thousand on 31.12.2009. The Group share in theltsesfi the aforementioned Joint Ventures appears in
Profit/(Loss) from Joint Ventures in the Incomet8taent, and amounted to loss of €593 thousanddb® 2nd to
loss of €8 thousand for 2009.
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9 Investments in subsidiaries

The change to the book value of the parent compganyestments to consolidated undertakings waslks\s:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

At year start

Additions new

Additions- increase in participation cost
Disposal of subsidiary

Transfer from liabilities

At year end

10 Investments in associates

Amounts in ,000 EUR

At year start

Impairment due to disposal of subsidiary
(Disposals) / (Decrease in participation cost)
Share in profit/ loss (after taxes)

Other changes in equity

Transfer from/to subsidiaries, JV, available fdesa
At year end

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
104,045 99,600
- 271
937 3,166
(60) -
- 1,007
104,922 104,045
CONSOLIDATED
FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
71,132 73,341 1,417 1,417
®) - - -
(26) (1,362) (21) -
(7,002) (1,322) - -
5,361 469 - -
- 5 - -
69,469 71,132 1,397 1,417

The change in “Share in profit/ loss (after taxem)d “Other changes in equity” seen in the conatdid figures
for the current year mainly relates to EUROPEAN ®BLELDS LTD.

Summary financial information on affiliated compasifor the financial year of 2010:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

PARTICIPA
TION
PROFIT/ | PERCENTA
SIN COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES | SALES (LOSS) GE (%)
1 BEPE KERATEAS SA 8,548 9,42 15 (673) 23.38
2 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA 275 9 - (127) 40.00
3 HELLAS GOLD S.A. 119,770 71,34 37,321 (5,671) 5.00
4 CHELIDONA SA 157 85 - (1) 50.00
EDRAKTOR CONSTRUCTION CO

5 | LD 395 - - (4) 50.00
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6 EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS LTD 455,691 105,98)7 37,668 (32,827) 19.30

PANTECHNIKI SA-D.
7 KOUGIOUMTZOPOULOS SA OE 2,275 1,339 2,554 (210) 30.00

Summary financial information on affiliated compasifor the financial year of 2009:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

PARTICIPA
TION
PROFIT/ | PERCENTA
SIN COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES SALES (LOSS) GE (%)
1 BEPE KERATEAS SA 9,348 9,554 3D  (420) 23.38
2 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA 399 6 - (126) 40.00
3 HELLAS GOLD S.A. 118,853 64,75 44695 1,716 5.00
4 LARKODOMI SA 814 590 1,780 238 34.59
5 CHELIDONA SA 158 85 - - 50.00
EDRAKTOR CONSTRUCTION CO
6 LTD 366 - - (5) 50.00
7 EUROPEAN GOLDFIELDS LTD 439,97 95,914 45,107 (8,021) 19.90
PANTECHNIKI SA-D.
8 KOUGIOUMTZOPOULOS SA OE 4,371 3,224 11,094 602 30.00

11 Joint Ventures & Companies consolidated followinghe proportional method

The following amounts represent the Group’s sham@ssets and liabilities in joint ventures and canips which
were consolidated following the proportional comdation method and which are included in the Stetenof
Financial Position, together with the share of naes and expenses included in the Group’s Incomee@ent
for financial years 2010 and 2009:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Receivables
Non-current assets 34,212 40,148
Current assets 550,378 560,153
584,590 600,301
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities 13,006 12,270
Current liabilities 556,634 579,425
569,640 591,695
Equity 14,950 8,606
Income 671,791 686,986
Expenses (645,603) (655,782)
Profit / (loss) (after tax) 26,188 31,205
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12 Financial assets available for sale

Amounts in ,000 EUR
CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
At year start 436 391 409 293
Disposal of subsidiary (4) - - -
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary - 4 - -
(Sales) (5) (68) (5) -
Transfer from/to subsidiaries, associated companies
Jv - 5) - -
Fair value adjustments of the periaucrease
/(decrease) (32) 115 (32) 115
At year end 396 436 372 409
Non-current assets 396 436 372 409
396 436 372 409

Financial assets available for sale include thiefohg:

Amounts in ,000 EUR
CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Listed securities:
Shares —Greece 372 404 372 404
Non-listed securities:
Shares —Greece 24 32 - 5
396 436 372 409

The above amounts are only expressed in Euros.

The fair value of non-listed securities is detemuirby discounting anticipated future cash flowsseson the
market rate, and the required return on investmafrggmilar risk.

Maximum exposure to credit risk as of the reportifage is the value at which financial assets abksl#or sale
are shown.
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13 Inventory

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Raw materials
Finished products
Semi-finished products
Production in progress

Prepayment for inventories purchase

Other
Total

Less:Provisions for obsolete, slow-moving or

damaged inventory:
Raw materials

Total net realisable value

14 Receivables

Amounts in ,000 EUR

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
15,627 15,112 73
6,334 6,696 -
336 75 -
375 495 -
39 3,487 2,902
7,371 6,688 -
30,082 32,553 2,975
6 - -
6 R -
30,076 32,553 2,975

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Trade receivables (except for retentions receiyable 228,217 276,544 58,019 77,322
Retentions receivable (e.g. good performance) 71,184 52,110 6,438 6,656
Trade receivables - Total 299,401 328,654 64,457 83,977
Trade receivables — Related parties 94,798 67,890 19,318 17,880
Less:Provision for impairment of receivables (984) (709) (265) (265)
Trade Receivables - Net 393,214 395,835 83,511 101,592
Prepayments 1,459 5,573 92 668
Amounts due from customers for contract work 254,830 277,481 118,286 113,625
Income tax prepayment 2,024 2,494 - -
Receivables from JVs 92,669 63,727 247,351 186,755
Loans to related parties - - 38 -
Prepayments for operating leases 24 32 24 20
Long-term time deposits - 1,461 - -
Other receivables 151,515 183,807 44,488 49,844
Other receivables -Related parties 4,574 6,505 52,045 31,122
Total 900,310 936,915 545,834 483,627
Non-current assets 15,852 12,622 1,466 1,438
Current assets 884,457 924,293 544,368 482,189
900,310 936,915 545,834 483,627
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The “Other receivables” account for 2010 at comsdéd level, at the amount of €151.5 million ineéadc61.3
million from “Advances to suppliers/creditors andci&l Security contributions (IKA), VAT and otheaxtes
receivable”, €67.1 million from “Other debtors”, £4million from “Accrued income”, €10.1 million fra
“Deferred expenses”, and €8.8 million from “Chequeseivable”.

The “Other receivables” account for 2009 at comkdéd level, at the amount of €183.8 million ingadcE82.2
million from “Advances to suppliers/creditors andct&l Security contributions (IKA), VAT and otheaxes
receivable”, €62.5 million from “Other debtors”, Z1 million from “Accrued income”, €16.5 million dm
“Deferred expenses”, and €10.5 million from “Chesjueceivable”.

The “Other receivables” account for 2010 at complangl, at the amount of €44.5 million includes £LAillion
from “Advances to suppliers/creditors and SocialiBity contributions (IKA), VAT and other taxes meable”,
€18.4 million from “Other debtors”, €3.2 milliondm “Accrued income”, €4.3 million from “Deferred panses”,
and €3.4 million from “Cheques receivable”.

The “Other receivables” account for 2009 at complangl, at the amount of €49.8 million includes &l#illion
from “Advances to suppliers/creditors and SociatiBigy contributions (IKA), VAT and other taxes e#eable”,

€20.3 million from “Other debtors”, €5 million froffAccrued income”, €6.8 million from “Deferred expges”,
and €2.9 million from “Cheques receivable”.

The movement on provision for impairment of tradeeaivables is shown in the following table:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

CONSOLIDATE COMPANY
D FIGURES FIGURES

Balance as of 1 January 2009 8,696 7,448
Provision for impairment of receivables 153
Write-off of receivables during the period 9) 9)
Unused provisions reversed (8,108) (7,159)
Currency translation differences (22) (15)
Balance as of 31 December 2009 709 265
Provision for impairment of receivables 403
Write-off of receivables during the period 4) -
Unused provisions reversed (96)
Currency translation differences (6) -
Disposal of subsidiary (23)
Balance as of 31 December 2010 984 265

The ageing analysis for trade balances as of 3&Mker 2010 is as follows:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Not overdue and not impaired 218,475 266,182 45,359 51,892
Overdue:
3 -6 months 39,829 28,070 4,201 9,298
6 months to 1 year 56,806 43,634 9,712 8,167
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1 -2 years 40,518 23,347 4,653 10,782
2 -3 years 16,788 19,066 6,176 6,773
Over 3 years 21,782 16,245 13,672 14,946
394,198 396,544 83,775 101,857
Less:Provision for impairment of receivables (984) (709) (265) (265)
Trade receivables - Net 393,214 395,835 83,510 101,592
Receivables are analyzed in the following curregicie
Amounts in ,000 EUR
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
EURO 560,526 623,961 447,951 437,019
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD) 63,751 38,730 51,559 27,339
ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON) 8,128 9,304 5,993 7,194
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM (AED) 154,035 183,594 - -
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 100,691 73,490 28,494 5,246
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) 13,178 7,836 11,835 6,829
SERBIAN DINAR (RSD) 1 - 1 -
900,310 936,915 545,834 483,627
The book value of long term receivables is appraxéario their fair value.
15 Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts in ,000 EUR
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Cash in hand 2,969 6,248 13 134
Sight deposits 172,501 221,150 65,109 73,657
Time deposits 5,858 18,875 3,479 6,313
Total 181,328 246,274 68,601 80,105

Time deposits for the current year at consolidégedl, amounting to €5,858 thousand mainly comenftbe
parent company, AKTOR SA, and its joint venture3,4€9 thousand and €1,971 thousand, respectively).

From the balances of sight and time deposits of2f@ip on 31.12.2010, approximately 91% is depdsitdive
banks into the geographical areas where the Grgguates and the Group considers that they invobry v

limited credit risk.
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The following table shows the rates of depositsqoedit rating class by Standard & Poor (S&P) a3112.2010.

Percentage of sight and time deposits

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09

Credit Institution Rating (S&P)

AA 3.3% 1.7%
A- 0.4% 2.5%
BBB 0.0% 49.6%
BBB+ 0.8% 32.4%
BB+ 33.0% 0.0%
BB 43.3% 0.0%
NR 19.2% 13.8%
TOTAL 100.0% 100.0%

The increased cooperation with lower rated creditiiutions seen is due to the downgrade of Gregkd credit
ratings, as a result of the debt crisis facing Geee

The rates of time deposits are determined afteotigg@pns with selected banking institutions basedEuribor
for an equal period with the selected placement (geek, month etc).

Cash and cash equivalents are analysed in thevialipcurrencies:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

EURO

KUWAIT DINAR (KWD)
BAHREIN DINAR (BHD)
US DOLLAR ($)

ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON)
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM
(AED)

QATAR RIYAL (QAR)
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN)
SERBIAN DINAR (RSD)

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
170,324 229,376 63,862 78,644
83 252 17 10
109 55 - -
192 481 11 33
3,130 306 2,936 43
4,980 7,706 - 1
1,465 7,951 815 1,235
1,044 146 959 139
1 - 1 -
181,328 246,274 68,601 80,105

(50) / (68)




‘ AKTOR

AKTOR SA
Annual Financial Statements
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2010

16 Share Capital & Premium Reserve

All amounts in EUR, save the number of shares

COMPANY FIGURES

Number of shares Share capital Share premium Total
1-Jan-09 36,300,000 108,900 37,955 146,855
Issue of new shares / (reduction) 5,000,000 15,000 34,834 49,834
31-Dec-09 41,300,000 123,900 72,789 196,689
1-Jan-10 41,300,000 123,900 72,789 196,689
31-Dec-10 41,300,000 123,900 72,789 196,689
The face value of the parent company’s shares ea€8.
17 Other reserves
All amounts in ,000 EUR.
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES
Available FX Cash Flow
Ordinary Special Untaxed for sale differences hedging Other
reserves reserves reserves reserves reserves reserves reserves Total
1-Jan-09 18,669 53,941 35,939 (221) 1,170 1,347 (9,947) 8a®,
Currency translation
differences - - - - (3,294) - - (3,294)
Transfer from retained
earnings 1,582 643 - - - - - 2,225
Changes in value of financial
assets available for sale /
Cash flow hedge - - - 115 - 2,704 - 2,819
31-Dec-09 20,252 54,584 35,939 (106) (2,124) 4,051 (9,947) 2,649
1-Jan-10 20,252 54,584 35,939 (106) (2,124) 4,051 (9,947) 2,649
Currency translation
differences - - - - 3,871 - - 3,871
Transfer from retained
earnings 203 15,364 - - - - - 15,567
Changes in value of financial
assets available for sale /
Cash flow hedge - - - (32) - 2,306 - 2,274
31-Dec-10 20,455 69,948 35,939 (138) 1,747 6,357 (9,947) 36M4,

The increase of €2,306 thousand seen in 2010 iC#sh flow hedging reserve is due to the Groupseaates.
Group associates participate with €3,050 thousanthe increase seen in the exchange differencevesseof
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€3,871 thousand. In 2009, Group associates cotddbloy 2,704 thousand to the increase in Cash lledging
reserves, and contributed by €2,235 thousand tadékhesase of €3,294 thousand in Foreign excharffggatice

reserves.

COMPANY FIGURES

Foreign
Available Exchange
Statutory Special Untaxed for sale Difference
reserves reserves reserves reserves Reserves Total
1-Jan-09 16,615 42,657 31,976 (221) (481) 90,546
Currency translation differences - - - - 868 868
Transfer from retained earnings 1,230 643 - - - 1,873
Adjustments in fair value and cash
flow hedges - - - 115 - 115
31-Dec-09 17,845 43,300 31,976 (106) 387 93,402
1-Jan-10 17,845 43,300 31,976 (106) 387 93,402
Currency translation differences - - - - (966) (966)
Transfer from retained earnings - 15,364 - - - 15,364
Adjustments in fair value and cash
flow hedges - - - (32) - (32)
31-Dec-10 17,845 58,664 31,976 (138) (579) 107,768
18 Borrowings
All amounts in ,000 EUR.
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Long-term borrowings
Bank borrowings 13,690 1,021 - -
Financial leases 275 3,882 - -
Bond loans 30,000 42,000 30,000 30,000
Total long-term borrowings 43,965 46,903 30,000 30,000
Short-term borrowings
Bank overdrafts 7,467 10,751 - -
Bank borrowings 176,626 189,972 43,710 22,385
Bond loans 62,300 - 51,300 -
Financial leases 2,850 3,624 - -
From related parties 1,018 899 537 -
Total short-term borrowings 250,262 205,247 95,547 22,385
Total borrowings 294,227 252,149 125,547 52,385
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The change seen in the Bond Loan row under short-teorrowings mainly corresponds to a transfer aficb
loans from long-term to short-term (mainly by AKTGEA and HELLENIC QUARRIES SA), as these mature

within one year from the reporting date (31.12.20Hdd to new disbursements of short-term bondddanthe
parent AKTOR SA.

Exposure to changes in interest rates and the dategvoicing are set out in the following table:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

FIXED
INTEREST
RATE FLOATING RATE
INTEREST upto6 6-12
RATE months months >12 months Total
31-Dec-09
Total borrowings 4,844 236,161 9,232 1,913 252,149
4,844 236,161 9,232 1,913 252,149
31-Dec-10
Total borrowings 2,519 258,476 31,319 1,913 294,227
2,519 258,476 31,319 1,913 294,227
COMPANY FIGURES
FIXED
INTEREST
RATE FLOATING RATE
INTEREST upto 6 6-12
RATE months months >12 months Total
31-Dec-09
Total borrowings - 52,385 - - 52,385
- 52,385 - - 52,385
31-Dec-10
Total borrowings - 125,547 - - 125,547
- 125,547 - - 125,547

The maturities of long-term borrowings are as falo

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Between 1 and 2 years 13,112 43,669 - 30,000
Between 2 and 5 years 30,812 3,233 30,000 -
Over 5 years 41 - - -
43,965 46,903 30,000 30,000
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Borrowings are analysed in the following currencies

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09

EURO 193,486 118,657 110,331 37,232
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD) 147 2,405 - -
US DOLLAR ($) 14,922 13,744 14,679 13,619
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM
(AED) 57,661 78,750 - -
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 27,437 37,059 - -
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) 575 1,534 537 1,534

294,227 252,149 125,547 52,385

Group borrowings are mainly linked to floating m{&uribor plus spread).

Further, the parent company, AKTOR, had grantegppa@te guarantees of €326.6 million as of 31.120201
(€280.4 million as of 31.12.2009) in favour of caanges and joint ventures in which it participatesinly to
secure bank credit lines or credit from suppliers.

The fair value of borrowings is calculated by diseting anticipated future cash flows, using disd¢aates which
represent the current conditions on the bankindetar

The book value of short-term loans approaches fagivalue, as the discount effect is insignifitan

Financial lease commitments, which are comprisd¢tiérabove tables, are analyzed as follows:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Financial lease commitments — minimum
lease payments
under 1 year 2,935 3,933
1-5 years 288 4,145
Total 3,224 8,078
Less:Future financial debits of financial
leases (99) (572)
Present value of financial lease
commitments 3,125 7,507

The present value of financial lease commitmenéayzed below:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
under 1 year 2,850 3,624
1-5 years 275 3,882
Total 3,125 7,507

The parent company has no financial lease liabdliti
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19 Trade and other liabilities

The Company’s liabilities from trade activities diree of interest.

Amounts in ,000 EUR

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09

Trade payables 176,461 204,689 76,273 66,704
Liabilities to JVs 32,146 35,393 82,235 73,943
Accrued expenses 15,203 20,863 133 79

Social security and other taxes 35,482 30,910 20,414 17,927
Amounts due to customers for contract work 42,407 60,124 19,822 30,799
Other liabilities 240,517 288,429 68,811 89,790
Total liabilities — Related parties 57,353 108,609 35,662 29,312
Total 599,570 749,017 303,349 308,554
Long-term 2,430 479 11 11

Short-term 597,140 748,537 303,337 308,543
Total 599,570 749,017 303,349 308,554

At a consolidated level, the “Other liabilities” Gount for 2010, amounting to €240.5 million inclsd€90.3

million from “Advances from customers”, €65.3 nulfi from “Subcontractors”, €67.2 million from “Other
creditors” and €17.6 million from “Fees for sendqeayable” and “Wages and salaries payable”.

At a consolidated level, the “Other liabilities” aaunt for 2009, amounting to €288.4 million incledé166.4
million from “Advances from customers”, €80.2 nulfi from “Subcontractors”, €30.5 million from “Other
creditors” and €11.3 million from “Fees for sendqeayable” and “Wages and salaries payable”.

At company level, the “Other liabilities” accourdrf2010, amounting to €68.8 million includes €2m#lion
from “Advances from customers”, €29.9 million frdf@ubcontractors”, €4.1 million from “Other credigdrand

7.0 million from “Fees for services payable” andd@és and salaries payable”.

At company level, the “Other liabilities” accourdrf2009, amounting to €89.8 million includes €4&fllion
from “Advances from customers”, €28.9 million frdf@ubcontractors”, €7.9 million from “Other credigrand

3.7 million from “Fees for services payable” andd@és and salaries payable”.

Total payables are analysed in the following curiest

Amounts in ,000 EUR

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
EURO 398,937 555,249 261,429 296,686
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD) 39,672 18,684 7,562 2,850
BAHREIN DINAR (BHD) - 37 - -
US DOLLAR ($) 372 80 - -
ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON) 4,473 8,104 2,625 2,772
BRITISH POUND (£) 58 - - -
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UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM (AED)
QATAR RIYAL (QAR)
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN)

106,850 122,277 - -
37,827 41,560 24,308 4,709
11,380 3,025 7,425 1,538

599,570 749,017 303,349 308,554

The book value of long-term liabilities approachesir fair value.

20 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax receivables and liabilities are conspéed when there is an applicable legal right topensate the
current tax receivables against the current tailiiees and when the deferred income taxes invoheesame tax
authority. The offset amounts for the Group aseftilowing:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES
Amounts in ,000 EUR

Deferred tax liabilities:
Recoverable after 12 months

Deferred tax receivables:
Recoverable after 12 months

Total change in deferred income tax is present
below:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Opening balance
Debit/ (credit) through profit and loss

Other comprehensive income debit/ (credit)
Disposal of subsidiary

Currency translation differences

Closing balance

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
20,012 16,327
20,012 16,327
75 416
75 416
19,936 15,911
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
15,911 16,013
4,011 60
- (8
39 132
(24) (286)
19,936 15,911

Changes in deferred tax receivables and liabilidasng the year, without taking into account offfisey of
balances with the same tax authority, are thevietig:
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CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Deferred tax liabilities:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Different
tax Construction  Assets under
L f : Other Total
depreciatio contracts  financial lease
n
1-Jan-09 4,619 48,376 1,465 50 54,509
Income statement debit/(credit) 309 (2,244) (224) (50) (2,209)
Disposal of subsidiary - - 477) - 477)
Currency translation differences (286) - - - (286)
31-Dec-09 4,641 46,132 764 - 51,537
1-Jan-10 4,641 46,132 764 - 51,537
Income statement debit/(credit) 653 (2,306) (251) - (1,904)
Disposal of subsidiary - - (316) - (316)
Currency translation differences (24) - - - (24)
31-Dec-10 5,271 43,826 197 - 49,294
Deferred tax receivables:
Amounts in ,000 EUR
Different
Provisions tax Tax losses Construction Fmgnc_lg_l lease Other Total
depreciatio contracts liabilities
n

1-Jan-09 1,193 304 1,822 32,719 1,304 1,155 38,497
Income statement debit/(credit) (2,193) (33) (1,822) 866 (138) 51 (2,269)
Other comprehensive income . 8 ) ) . . 8
(debit)/ credit
Disposal of subsidiary - (65) - - (519) (25) (610)
31-Dec-09 - 215 - 33,585 646 1,181 35,626
1-Jan-10 - 215 - 33,585 646 1,181 35,626
Income statement debit/(credit) - (42) - (5,814) (143) 85 (5,914)
Disposal of subsidiary - 2) - - (353) - (355)
31-Dec-10 - 171 - 27,771 151 1,265 29,357
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The offset amounts for the Company are the follgwin

COMPANY FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Deferred tax liabilities:
Recoverable after 12 months

Total change in deferred income tax is presented
below:

Opening balance
Debit/ (credit) through profit and loss

Closing balance

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
7,841 2,674
7,841 2,674

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
2,674 3,653
5,167 (979)
7,841 2,674

Changes in deferred tax receivables and liabilidasng the year, without taking into account offisg of
balances with the same tax authority, are theiotig:

Deferred tax liabilities:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

1-Jan-09

Income statement debit/(credit)

31-Dec-09

1-Jan-10

Income statement debit/(credit)

31-Dec-10

Deferred tax receivables:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

1-Jan-09
Income statement debit/(credit)

31-Dec-09

1-Jan-10
Income statement debit/(credit)

31-Dec-10

Differer_1t tax Construction Total
depreciation contracts
1,097 25,068 26,165
272 1,261 1,533
1,369 26,329 27,698
1,369 26,329 27,698
133 435 568
1,502 26,764 28,266
1,193 144 20,217 958 22,512
(1,193) (25) 3,742 (13) 2,511
- 119 23,959 946 25,024
- 119 23,959 946 25,024
- (47) (4,627) 76 (4,598)
- 72 19,332 1,021 20,425

(58) / (68)



‘ AKTOR SA
AKTOR Annual Financial Statements
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2010

21 Retirement benefit obligations

All amounts in ,000 EUR.

The amounts recognised in the Statement of FinbBRosition
are the following:

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10  31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10  31-Dec-09
Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Positionfor:
Retirement benefits 6,060 5,687 5,107 4,728
Total 6,060 5,687 5,107 4,728

The amounts recognised in the Income Statemernhare

following:
CONSOLIDATED
FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Income statement charge:
Retirement benefits 4,242 3,977 3,603 3,308
Total 4,242 3,977 3,603 3,308

The amounts posted in the Statement of FinancisitiBo are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10  31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Present value of non-financed liabilities 7,764 6,986 6,606 5,970
Non-booked actuarial (profits)/losses (2,704) (2,301) (2,499) (1,242)
Non-booked past service cost - 2 - -
Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position 6,060 5,687 5,107 4,728

The amounts posted in the Income Statement adlaw$:

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-10  31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Current employment cost 814 1,707 642 1,420
Finance cost 422 324 364 287
Depreciation of non-booked actuarial profit / (Joss 86 123 86 119
Past service cost 257 9 257 (178)
Cut-down losses 2,662 1,814 2,255 1,660
Total included in staff benefits 4,242 3,977 3,603 3,308
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Change to liabilities as presented in the StatemeRinancial Position is as follows:

Opening balance

Acquisition/ disposal/ absorption of subsidiary

Indemnities paid

Total expense charged in the income statement

Closing balance

The main actuarial assumptions used for accouptimgoses are:

Discount rate
Future salary increases

22 Grants

Amounts in ,000 EUR

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

At year start
Additions

Transfer to Income Statemefither operating
income/expenses

At year end

CONSOLIDATED

The change to additions for the current year istdwgibsidiary CAISSON SA.

23 Provisions

Amounts in ,000 EUR

1-Jan-09
Additional provisions for financial year

Unused provisions reversed
Currency translation differences
Used provisions for financial year
31-Dec-09

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10  31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
5,687 4,580 4,728 3,807
- (262) - -
(3,868) (2,607) (3,224) (2,387)
4,242 3,977 3,603 3,308
6,060 5,687 5,107 4,728
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
4.30% 6.10%
4.00% 4.00%
Note 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
205 274
722 -
29 (14) (69)
912 205
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
Other Other
provisions Total provisions Total
6,983 6,983 1,195 1,195
7,183 7,183 2,725 2,725
(498) (498) 9) 9)
(207) (207) (56) (56)
(847) (847) (83) (83)
12,715 12,715 3,772 3,772
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1-Jan-10 12,715 12,715 3,772 3,772
Additional provisions for financial year 2,733 2,733 684 684
Unused provisions reversed (833) (833) (833) (833)
Currency translation differences 723 723 91 91
Used provisions for financial year (3,199) (3,199) (55) (55)
31-Dec-10 12,138 12,138 3,658 3,658

Analysis of total provisions:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Long-term
Short-term

Total

24  EXpenses per category

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Employee benefits
Inventories used

Depreciation of PPE

Amortization of intangible
assets

Repair and maintenance
expenses of PPE

Operating lease rents
Third party fees

Provisions for doubtful
receivables

Other
Total

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
7,977 7,480 3,483 2,965
4,161 5,235 176 807
12,138 12,715 3,658 3,772
1-Jan to 31-Dec-10 1-Jan to 31-Dec-09
Administ Adminis
Cost of Distribut rative Cost of Distribut trative
sales ion costs expenses  Total sales ion costs expenses  Total
213,696 521 12,917 227,134 240,743 1,044 16,588 258,375
340,265 187 193 340,645 479,220 315 272 479,807
27,971 35 5,981 33,987 26,851 77 2,631 29,559
123 - 36 159 214 2 41 257
25,278 25 172 25,476 22,557 163 289 23,008
22,963 139 2,173 25,275 22,909 674 2,537 26,120
524,791 1,095 9,296 535,181 651,541 561 4,808 656,909
286 - 117 403 109 - 44 153
73,897 950 8,131 82,978 113,484 2,036 11,163 126,682
1,229,270 2,952 39,015 1,271,237 1,557,626 4,871 38,374 1,600,872
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COMPANY FIGURES

Amounts in ,000 EUR

1-Jan to 31-Dec-10 1-Jan to 31-Dec-09
Administr Administr
Cost of ative Cost of ative
sales expenses Total sales expenses Total
Employee benefits 81,910 8,056 89,966 105,674 11,781 117,454
Inventories used 154,713 107 154,820 162,473 81 162,554
Depreciation of PPE 11,030 332 11,363 10,579 522 11,101
Amortization of
intangible assets 5 - 5 29 9 39
Repair and maintenance
expenses of PPE 5,875 114 5,989 11,014 108 11,122
Operating lease rents 9,179 2,009 11,188 6,829 2,121 8,950
Third party fees 240,584 7,418 248,001 271,862 2,738 274,599
Other 31,408 4,769 36,177 37,058 4,594 41,652
Total 534,704 22,804 557,509 605,518 21,954 627,472

25 Other operating income/ (expenses)

Amounts in ,000 EUR
CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09

Income / (expenses) from participations & secisifapart 89 318 36 R
from dividends)
Profits/(losses) from the sale of financial assategorized (5) _ (5) -
as available for sale
Profit /(loss) from the disposal of subsidiaries 193 1.501 3 -
Profit /(loss) from the disposal of Associates (11) - (21) -
Profit /(loss) from the disposal of JVs (18) - (18) -

490 700 291 365
Profit/ (losses) from the disposal of PPE
Amortisation of grants received 14 69 - -
Rents 2,198 3,623 9,906 9,436
Other profit/ (losses) 9,849 4,298 1,598 (4,251)
Total 12,800 10,508 11,791 5,549

Profit from the disposal of subsidiaries seen atsotidated level for the current year is mainly cioethe amount
of €123 thousand, to the disposal of GEMACO SAhiadtparties in Q3 2010.
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26 Financial income/ expenses - net

Amounts in ,000 EUR

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Interest expenses
- Bank borrowings (14,661) (14,019) (2,753) (1,443)
- Financial Leases (97) (327) - -
(14,758) (14,346) (2,753) (1,443)
Interest income 3,770 4,610 766 785
Net interest (expenses)/ income (10,989) (9,736) (1,987) (658)
Other financial expenses
Commissions paid for letters of guarantee (2,704) (2,043) (632) (4)
Miscellaneous bank expenses (1,441) (562) (279) (101)
(3,145) (1,605) (911) (105)
Net foreign exchange differences profit/ (lossydro
borrowings 1,883 (931) 1,907 38
Financial income/ (expenses) - net (12,251) (12,272) (990) (725)
27 Employee benefits
Amounts in ,000 EUR
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Wages and salaries 161,479 186,303 63,459 89,300
Social security expenses 42,439 41,090 22,336 22,082
Cost of defined benefit plans 4,242 3,977 3,603 3,308
Other employee benefits 18,974 27,006 568 2,764
Total 227,134 258,375 89,966 117,454
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28 Income tax

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Tax for financial year
Extraordinary, social responsibility levy

Deferred tax

Total

Pursuant to Law 3845/2010, a new extraordinary lexss imposed in 2010 on all Greek companies whose

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
14,901 19,786 36 9,743
4,199 3,345 1,875 3,345
4,011 60 5,167 (979)
23,111 23,191 7,078 12,109

earnings for FY 2009 exceeded €100 thousand. Taegelstands at €4,199 thousand for the Group, &@t,875

thousand for the Company.

Pursuant to Law 3808/2009, an extraordinary, so@aponsibility levy was imposed in 2009 on all &ce
companies whose earnings for FY 2008 exceeded EbmiThe charge stands at €3,345 thousand foGitwaip,

and at €3,345 thousand for the Company.

Tax on profit before tax of the company is diffaréiom the theoretical amount that would arise & use the
weighted average tax rate of the country from whieghcompany originates, as follows:

Amounts in ,000 EUR

Accounting profit / (losses) before tax

Tax calculated on profits under current tax raggsliad in
the respective countries

Adjustments

Other income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductable for tax purposes
Past year taxes and other duties

Use of tax losses from prior financial years

Difference in income from construction contractsdzhon
completion % for which a deferred taxation hashesn
recognized.

Difference between current tax rate and deferredate

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset wagresed

Extraordinary levy
Taxes

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
9,383 59,234 6,294 36,707
11,069 20,272 1,511 9,177
(2,325) (7,752) (1,838) (6,198)
2,735 5,751 1,708 4,906
2,917 670 8 533
(1,265) (2,231) - -
(125) 1,010 561 437
(51) (131) (370) (92)
5,955 2,258 3,623 -
4,199 3,345 1,875 3,345
23,111 23,191 7,078 12,109

The table presenting the analysis of unauditedhfiie years of all companies under consolidatismshiown in

Note 8.
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29 Dividends per share

The Board of Directors decided not to distributeidinds for 2010. This decision is subject to apptat the
annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be meldimne 2010.

30 Commitments

The following amounts represent commitments for agt operating leases from Group subsidiaries, which
are leased to third parties.

Amounts in ,000 EUR

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
Up to 1 year 1,083 1,080 1,023 1,007
From 1-5 years 2,136 1,323 2,044 1,269
Total 3,219 2,403 3,067 2,276

31 Contingent receivables and liabilities

(a) Proceedings have been initiated against theigsfar work accidents which occurred during thecesion of
construction projects by companies or joint vergurewhich the Group participates. Because the @Gisdully
insured against work accidents, no substantial mbcances are anticipated as a result of rulingsnagthe
Group. Other litigations or disputes referred tbitaation, as well as the pending court or arbitratulings are
not expected to have a material effect on the firrstanding or the operations of the Group orGloenpany,
and for this reason no relevant provisions have ieened.

(b) Tax unaudited years for consolidated Group cmgs are presented in Note 8. Group tax liakslitex these
years have not been finalized yet and therefordtiaddl charges may arise when the relevant aualits
performed by tax authorities. The unaudited yearshHe parent AKTOR are 2009-2010.

(c) The Group has contingent liabilities in relatim banks, other guarantees, and other matteratisa from its
normal business activity and from which no subsghburden is expected to arise.
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‘ AKTOR

32 Transactions with related parties
All amounts in ,000 EUR.

The aggregate amounts of sales and purchases #anstart, as well as the closing balances of vabks and
liabilities at year end, which have resulted fraemsactions with related parties under IAS 24 aaréollows:

Amounts in ,000 EUR
CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
? Sales of goods and services 157,974 67,132 177,258 116,555
Sales to subsidiaries - - 80,098 81,141
Sales to associates 27,773 25,626 - -
Sales to related parties 130,201 41,505 97,161 35,414
t)) Purchases of goods and services 18,213 17,343 43,791 38,969
Purchases from subsidiaries - - 22,669 21,632
Purchases from associates 3,082 1,676 - -
Purchases from related parties 15,131 15,666 21,122 17,337
(): Key management compensation 6,082 4,169 5,720 4,031
CONSOLIDATED
FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-09
‘;‘ Receivables 99,372 74,395 71,402 49,002
Receivables from subsidiaries - - 50,957 27,116
Receivables from associates 4,513 2,924 - -
Receivables from affiliates 94,858 71,472 20,445 21,886
t)’ Liabilities 57,353 108,609 35,662 29,312
Payables to subsidiaries - - 10,969 12,368
Payables to associates 667 1,145 - -
Payables to affiliates 56,687 107,463 24,693 16,944
(): Borrowings 1,018 899 537 -
Payables to subsidiaries - - 537 -
Payables to affiliates 1,018 899 - -
) Dividends payable - - 9,293 19,602
Payables to affiliates - - 9,293 19,602
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33 New companies in the year 2010

No new companies were established or acquireddBtioup during the current year.

34  Other notes

1. No liens exist on fixed assets.

2. The number of employees on 31.12.10 was 2,15lh®Company and 2,970 for the Group (excluding Joint
Ventures) and the respective number of employeekldr?.09 was 2,435 and 3,357.

3. While incorporated in the consolidated financiatstents for 2009, the following companies were not
incorporated in the consolidated financial statetsiéor the current year: VARI VENTURES LIMITED, due
to its disposal to third parties in Q2 2010, KARARAU BROS SA, due to its disposal to third partie€il
2010, GEMACO SA, due to its disposal to third pegtin Q3 2010, and the associate LARKODOMI SA, due
to its disposal to third parties in Q4 2010.

4. On 29 September 2010, the boards of directors béidiaries HELLENIC QUARRIES SA, STYLIDA
QUARRIES SA, and LATOMIKI IMATHIAS SA decided to pceed to a merger by absorption of the
second and third company by the first one, purst@tihe combined provisions of articles 68-70, B2-77
and 78 of Codified Law 2190/1920, and articles @fSLaw 2166/1993, as in force, the Amalgamation
Balance Sheet date for each absorbed company B€i6§.2010. The Merger Agreement Plan was approved
at the meeting of the amalgamated companies’ BaDefa20.10.2010, and was subject to the publicity
formalities of article 7(b) of Codified Law 2190/2®. A summary thereof was published in Issue No.
18889/04.1.2011 of “Imerisia” financial newspapEmally, on 10.02.2011, the Boards of Directorstloé
aforementioned companies also approved, in accoedaith the relevant provisions of article 78 ofdified
Law 2190/1920, the Merger Agreement Plan and #ilbas taken for said merger.

5. The total fees payable to the Group’s legal auslifor FY 2010 stand at €364 thousand for the mamgat
audit on the annual financial statements and atl@%sand for other services.

35 Post balance sheet events

1. On 20 January 2011, it was announced that the yeinture of the companies HELECTOR SA — AKTOR SA
— AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA, in which AKTOR SA, the parecompany, participates, was awarded
project “Construction and Operation of the Housdhtaste Management System of Saint Petersburg”. The
total investment exceeds €300 million, while theamssion is granted for 25 years. The capacith@ptant
ranges between 350,000 and 500,000 tons of houselasite annually.
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2. On1 February 2011, it was announced that ADCCtJ&anture, led by AKTOR with a participation of 40%
was awarded project: GSE Maintenance Facility, Mdm@nsport Workshop, Facilities Maintenance Fgcili
Building and Facilities Maintenance Facility Workgh at the New Doha International Airport. The
contractual amount for the above project is QAR,28@,603 (€68 million). The project constructiorripd
will be 13 months.

3. In February 2011, AKTOR, the parent company, aeglLit00% of BIOSAR Energy, an Ellaktor Group
company. BIOSAR operates in the design, constroctiod maintenance of photovoltaic stations, and ove
the last years has been recording steadily impgpfigures.

Kifissia, 24 March 2010
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